TOWN OF JEROME

POST OFFICE BOX 335, JEROME, ARIZONA 86331
(928) 634-7943
www.jerome.az.gov

AGENDA
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING OF THE TOWN OF JEROME
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, JEROME TOWN HALL
600 CLARK STREET, JEROME, ARIZONA

MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025, AT 5:00 PM

Due to the length of this meeting, Council may recess and reconvene at the time and date announced.

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02 notice is hereby given to the members of the Council and to the General Public that the Jerome Town Council plans to hold the above meeting.
Persons with a disability may request an accommodation such as a sign language interpreter by contacting Kristen Muenz, Deputy Clerk, at 928-634-7943. Requests should be
made early enough to allow time to arrange the accommodation. For TYY access, call the Arizona Relay Service at 800-367-8939 and ask for the Town of Jerome at 928-634-7943.

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to A.R.S. 1-602.A.9, subject to certain specified statutory exceptions, parents have a right to consent before the State or any of its political
subdivisions make a video or audio recording of a minor child. Meetings of the Town Council are audio and/or video recorded, and, as a result, proceedings in which children are
present may be subject to such recording. Parents in order to exercise their rights may either file written consent with the Town Clerk to such recording, or take personal action to
ensure that their child or children are not present when a recording may be made. If a child is present at the time a recording is made, the Town will assume that the rights
afforded parents pursuant to A.R.S. 1-602.A.9 have been waived.

We acknowledge we are on the traditional lands of the Yavapai and Apache People and we, the Town of Jerome, pay respect to the elders both past and present.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

Mayor/Chairperson to call meeting to order
Town Clerk to call and record the roll.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion/Possible Action

A. Representatives from Colby and Powell will Present the Firm's Audit of Jerome's
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2024.
Council may make a motion to accept the FY 2024 Audit findings.

B. Appointment and Oath of Office for New Deputy Chief Michael Odle
Chief San Felice will issue the Loyalty Oath of Office and the pinning of the badge and
lapel insignia.

C. Consideration of a Tour Company Business License Application for Wicked City
Tours, LLC
Council will consider and may approve the tour company business license application.

D. Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget Work Session
Council will continue their discussions regarding the 2025-2026 budget, including a
review of an initial draft budget. All aspects of the budget may be discussed and Council
may provide staff direction regarding the 2025-2026 budget.

ADJOURNMENT




Special Council Meeting of Monday, April 21, 2025

The Town Council may recess the public meeting and convene in Executive Session for the purpose of discussion or
consultation for legal advice with the Town Attorney, who may participate telephonically, regarding any item listed on this
agenda pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3). The Chair reserves the right, with the consent of Council, to take items on the
agenda out of order.
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that this notice and agenda was posted at the following locations on or before 7 p.m. on
in accordance with the statement filed by the Jerome Town Council with the
Jerome Town Clerk: (1) 970 Gulch Road, side of Gulch Fire Station, exterior posting case; (2) 600 Clark Street, Jerome Town
Hall, exterior posting case; (3) 120 Main Street, Jerome Post office, interior posting case.

Kristen Muenz, Deputy Town Clerk




File Attachments for ltem:

A. Representatives from Colby and Powell will Present the Firm's Audit of Jerome's
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2024.

Council may make a motion to accept the FY 2024 Audit findings.
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CoLBY &
C&P PoweLL, pLC

1535 W. Harvard Avenue, Suite 101 - Gilbert, Arizona 85233
Tel: (480) 635-3200 - Fax: (480) 635-3201

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Town Council
Town of Jerome, Arizona

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Jerome, Arizona, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each major fund of the Town of Jerome, Arizona, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Town of Jerome, Arizona, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of
Jerome, Arizona’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e (Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

The Town of Jerome, Arizona has not presented the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America has determined is
necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements. Such
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Budgetary Comparison Schedules and net pension liability and other post-employment benefit
plan information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April
8, 2024, on our consideration of the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Reporting Required by Arizona Revised Statutes

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the
Town failed comply with the authorized transportation purposes, insofar as they relate to
accounting matters, for Highway User Revenue Fund monies it received pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2 and any other dedicated state transportation
revenues it received. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge
of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures; other matters
may have come to our attention regarding the Town’s noncompliance with authorized
transportation purposes referred to above, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

The communication related to compliance over the use of Highway User Revenue Fund and
other dedicated State transportation revenue monies in the preceding paragraph is intended solely
for the information and use of the members of the Arizona State Legislature, the Auditor General
of the State of Arizona, the Town Council, management, and other responsible parties within the
Town and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Colhy « Pouredl

January 10, 2025
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Statement of Net Position

Item A.

June 30, 2024
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,631,692 $ 177,578 $ 2,809,270
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted - 31,648 31,648
Accounts receivable-net - 43,658 43,658
Taxes receivable 5,275 - 5,275
Due from other governments 263,354 - 263,354
Leases receivable 181,939 - 181,939
Inventories 13,193 - 13,193
Net pension/OPEB asset 1,727 - 1,727
Capital assets, not being depreciated 362,468 707,781 1,070,249
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,690,236 2,276,230 3,966,466
Total assets 5,149,884 3,236,895 8,386,779
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions
and other postemployment benefits 148,780 - 148,780
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 65,015 16,753 81,768
Accrued expenses 83,155 72,000 155,155
Deposits held for others 6,849 31,648 38,497
Unearned revenue 790,814 - 790,814
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within 1 year 27,710 904,563 932,273
Due in more than 1 year 214,711 1,521 216,232
Total liabilities 1,188,254 1,026,485 2,214,739
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to leases 181,939 - 181,939
Deferred inflows related to pensions
and other postemployment benefits 7,533 - 7,533
Total deferred inflows of resources 189,472 - 189,472
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,052,704 2,084,011 4,136,715
Restricted for:
Court enhancement fund 24,783 - 24,783
Public works and streets 72,166 - 72,166
Community development 249,828 - 249,828
Unrestricted 1,521,457 126,399 1,647,856
Total net position $ 3,920,938 $ 2210410 $ 6,131,348

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Statement of Activities
June 30, 2024

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Item A.

Charges Operating Capital Primary Government
for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities
General government $ 601,260 $ 19,168 $ - $ 57,555 $ (524,537) - $ (524,537)
Public safety 1,529,337 257,302 34,352 1,593 (1,236,090) - (1,236,090)
Public works and streets 160,264 - 48,503 26,187 (85,574) - (85,574)
Community development 278,098 86,267 - - (191,831) - (191,831)
Parking 97,309 377,291 - - 279,982 - 279,982
Culture and recreation 134,738 - 22,577 - (112,161) - (112,161)
Interest on long-term debt 2,603 - - - (2,603) - (2,603)
Total governmental activities 2,803,609 740,028 105,432 85,335 (1,872,814) - (1,872,814)
Business-type activities
Utilities 734,279 514,693 - - - (219,586) (219,586)
Total business-type activities 734,279 514,693 - - - (219,586) (219,586)
Total primary government $ 3,537,888 $ 1,254,721 $ 105,432 $ 85335 (1,872,814) (219,586) (2,092,400)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 47,501 - 47,501
Town sales taxes 1,429,591 - 1,429,591
Franchise taxes 19,090 - 19,090
Shared revenue-State sales tax 70,072 - 70,072
Shared revenue-Urban revenue 397,487 - 397,487
Shared revenue-State vehicle license tax 39,408 - 39,408
Investment earnings 27,365 - 27,365
Miscellaneous 18,385 - 18,385
Transfers (206,907) 206,907 -
Total general revenues and transfers 1,841,992 206,907 2,048,899
Change in net position (30,822) (12,679) (43,501)
Net position, beginning of y ear 3,951,760 2,223,089 6,174,849
Net position, end of year $ 3,920,938 $ 2,210,410 $ 6,131,348

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-5-
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Governmental Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Due from other governments
Leases receivable
Inventories
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for others
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEDERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to leases

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Court enhancement
Public works and streets
Community development
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2024
Total
General HURF Grants Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 1,597,187 $ 68,093 $ 966,412 $ 2,631,692
5,275 - - 5,275
196,889 4,978 61,487 263,354
181,939 - - 181,939
- - 13,193 13,193
$ 1,981,290 $ 73,071 $ 1,041,092 $ 3,095,453
$ 63,660 $ 905 $ 450 $ 65015
83,155 - - 83,155
6,849 - - 6,349
- - 790,814 790,814
153,664 905 791,264 945,833
181,939 - - 181,939
24,783 - - 24,783
- 72,166 - 72,166
- - 249,828 249,828
1,620,904 - - 1,620,904
1,645,687 72,166 249,828 1,967,681
$ 1,981,290 $ 73,071 $ 1,041,092 $ 3,095,453

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Item A.

TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Balance Sheet
to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2024

Fund balances-total governmental funds $ 1,967,681

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 2,052,704

Long-term liabilities, such as net pension/OPEB liabilities and
leases payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported as a liability in the funds. (242,421)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB
are applicable to future reporting periods and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds. 141,247

Net position of governmental activities $ 3,920,938

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-7- 13




TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Item A.

Year Ended June 30, 2024
Total
General HURF Grants Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 1,477,092 $ - - $ 1,477,092
Intergovernmental 598,230 48,503 60,540 707,273
Charges for services 175,255 - - 175,255
Parking 377,454 - - 377,454
Fines and forfeits 94,689 - - 94,689
Licenses and permits 35,173 - - 35,173
Miscellaneous 25,176 - - 25,176
Investment earnings 23,655 3,710 - 27,365
Donations and grants 2,662 - 57,555 60,217
Total revenues 2,809,386 52,213 118,095 2,979,694
Expenditures
Current
General government 535,918 - - 535,918
Public safety 1,348,481 - 35,187 1,383,668
Public works and streets - 140,447 - 140,447
Community development 269,516 - 7,957 277,473
Parking 97,309 - - 97,309
Culture and recreation 134,005 - - 134,005
Debt service
Principal 10,226 108 - 10,334
Interest 2,603 - - 2,603
Capital outlay 11,869 50,874 74,549 137,292
Total expenditures 2,409,927 191,429 117,693 2,719,049
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 399,459 (139,216) 402 260,645
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers (398,640) 191,733 - (206,907)
Total other financing sources (uses  (398,640) 191,733 - (206,907)
Net change in fund balances 819 52,517 402 53,738
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,644,868 19,649 249,426 1,913,943
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,645,687 $ 72,166 249,828 $ 1,967,681

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Item A.

TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-wide Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds $ 53,738

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense
Capital outlay 137,292
Depreciation expense (176,247) (38,955)

Town pension/OPEB contributions are reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds when made. However they are reported as deferred
outflows of resources in the statement of net position because the reported
net pension/OPEB liability is measured a year before the Town's report
date. Pension/OPEB expense, which is the change in the net pension/OPEB
liability adjusted for changed in deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions/OPEB, is reported in the statement of activities.
Town pension/OPEB contributions 35,779
Pension/OPEB expense (93,823) (58,044)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
position.
Debt principal repaid 10,334

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental
funds, expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally
paid with expendable available resources. In the statement of activities,
however, which is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are
reported regardless of when the financial resources are available.
Decrease in compensated absences 2,105

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (30,822)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted
Accounts receivable-net
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for customers
Compensated absences payable, current portion
Note payable, current portion
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Utilities
Fund

Item A.

177,578
31,648
43,658

252,884

707,781
2,276,230

2,984,011

3,236,895

16,753
72,000
31,648
4,563
900,000

1,024,964

1,521

1,026,485

2,084,011
126,399

2,210,410

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Sanitation user fees
Water user fees
Sewer user fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel
Depreciation
Contract services
Repairs and maintenance
Office
Fees and permits
Insurance
Fuel
Miscellaneous
Legal and professional
Tools and equipment
Utilities

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest expense

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Transfers
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Utilities
Fund

Item A.

175,756
171,263
166,828

846

514,693

304,488
97,424
54,000

111,616
35,347
23,105
49,683
11,942

5,057
1,961

766
2,878

698,267

(183,574)

(36,012)

(219,586)

206,907

(12,679)

2,223,089

$

2,210,410

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-11 -

17




TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and providers of goods and services
Payments to employee wages and benefits
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers to other funds

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on capital lease
Interest paid
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities
Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Utilities
Fund

Item A.

505,011
(406,964)
(304,156)

(206,109)

206,907

(746)
(12)
(632,508)

(633,266)

(632,468)

841,694

209,226

177,578
31,648

209,226
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2024
(Continued)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Account receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for customers
Compensated absences
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Utilities
Fund

Item A.

(183,574)

97.424

(11,441)

(103,203)

(7,406)
1,759
332

(206,109)
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Fiduciary Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2024

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair value
Due from Town
Total assets

NET POSITION
Held in trust for investment trust participants

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-14 -

Pension
Trust
Fund

Item A.

18,162
189,886
19,538

227,586

227,586
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Fiduciary Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Additions:
Contributions
Investment earnings:
Interest and dividends
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Total additions

Deductions:
Distributions to participants
Administrative fees
Total deductions
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Pension
Trust
Fund

Item A.

19,236

5,529
24,741

49,506

31,636
4,983

36,619

12,887

214,699

227,586
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of Jerome, Arizona’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).

A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a general-purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected Town
Council. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the Town (the primary
government).

B. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the Town as a whole, while the fund
statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be
analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the information’s
usefulness.

Government-wide statements—Provide information about the primary government (the Town).
The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements
report the overall government’s financial activities, except for fiduciary activities. They also
distinguish between the Town’s governmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function of the Town’s governmental activities and segment of its business-type
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function
and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The Town does not allocate
indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include:

= charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided;

= operating grants and contributions; and
= capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.

- 16 -

Item A.

22




TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources
and all taxes the Town levies or imposes, are reported as general revenues.

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. However, charges for
interfund services provided and used are not eliminated if the prices approximate their external
exchange values.

Fund financial statements—Provide information about the Town’s funds, including fiduciary
funds. Separate statements are presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund
categories. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund

type.

Proprietary fund revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or nonoperating.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from transactions associated with the fund’s
principal activity. Accordingly, revenues, such as user charges and insurance premiums, in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal values are operating revenues. Other revenues,
such as subsidies, result from transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values and
are considered nonoperating revenues along with investment earnings and revenues ancillary
activities generate. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. Other expenses, such as interest expense, are considered
nonoperating expenses.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The HURF Fund accounts for specific revenue received from the State of Arizona Highway
User Revenue Fund which is legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

The Grants Fund accounts for financial resources received from various entities. Restrictions on
the use of these resources are derived from the agreements from which the resources were
provided.

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Utilities Fund accounts for operations of the Town-owned water, sewer, and sanitation, that

are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in which the intent
of the Town Council is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or for which the Town Council has decided that periodic determination of revenue
earned, expenses incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The Town reports the following fund types:

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the Town’s Volunteer Firefighter’s Relief and Pension
Fund, a defined contribution plan for which the assets are held by the Town in a trustee capacity.

C. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements the provider imposed have been met.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of
grants and general revenues. Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, there are both
restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance the program. The Town applies grant
resources to such programs before using general revenues.

Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available. The Town considers
all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected
within 60 days after year-end. The Town’s major revenue sources that are susceptible to accrual
are property taxes, special assessments, intergovernmental, charges for services, and investment
earnings. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences,
landfill closure and post closure care costs, and pollution remediation obligations, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuances of general long-term
debt and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as other financing sources.

D. Cash and Investments

For the statement of cash flows, the Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash
on hand, demand deposits, investments in the State Treasurer’s local government investment
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

pool, and only those highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased.

Cash and investments are pooled, except for investments that are restricted under provisions of
bond indentures or other restrictions that are required to be reported in the individual funds.

Arizona Revised Statutes authorize the Town to invest public monies in the State Treasurer’s
local government investment pools, the County Treasurer’s investment pool, obligations of the
U.S. Government and its agencies, obligations of the state and certain local government
subdivisions, interest-bearing savings accounts and certificates of deposit, collateralized
repurchase agreements, certain obligations of U.S. corporations, and certain other securities.
Investments are stated at fair value.

Arizona statute requires a pooled collateral program for public deposits and a Statewide
Collateral Pool Administrator (Administrator) in the State Treasurer’s Office. The purpose of the
pooled collateral program is to ensure that governmental entities’ public deposits placed in
participating depositories are secured with collateral of 102 percent of the public deposits, less
any applicable deposit insurance. An eligible depository may not retain or accept any public
deposit unless it has deposited the required collateral with a qualified escrow agent or the
Administrator. The Administrator manages the pooled collateral program, including reporting on
each depository’s compliance with the program.

E. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are estimated by the Town. The amount
recorded as uncollectible at June 30, 2024 in the Utilities Fund was $21,000.

F. Inventories

The Town accounts for its inventories in the governmental funds using the consumption method.
Inventories of the governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and
are recorded as expenditures at the time of consumption.

These inventories are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of valuation.

G. Property Tax Calendar

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are levied and collected or if they
are collected within 60 days subsequent to fiscal year-end. Property taxes not collected within 60

days subsequent to fiscal year-end are reported as unavailable revenue. Property taxes collected
in advance of the fiscal year for which they are levied are reported as unearned revenue.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

The Town levies real property taxes on or before the third Monday in August that become due
and payable in two equal installments. The first installment is due on the first day of October and
becomes delinquent after the first business day of November. The second installment is due on
the first day of March of the next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of
May.

A lien assessed against real and personal property attaches on the first day of January preceding
assessment and levy.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported at actual cost (or estimated historical cost if historical records are not
available). Donated assets are reported at acquisition value.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the
capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as
follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life (years)
Land $ 5,000 N/A N/A
Buildings and improvements 5,000 Straight-line 5-30
Machinery and equipment 5,000 Straight-line 3-20
Vehicles 5,000 Straight-line 5-10
Water systemand improvements 5,000 Straight-line 15-50
Wastewater plant 5,000 Straight-line 15-50
I. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position and balance sheet include separate sections for deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods that will be recognized as an expense
or expenditure in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net
position or fund balance that applies to future periods and will be recognized as a revenue in
future periods.

J. Postemployment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) assets
and liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions and OPEB, and pension and OPEB expense, information about the plans’ fiduciary net
position and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

K. Investment Earnings

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of
applicable investments.

L. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences consist of PTO leave earned by employees based on services already
rendered.

There is no limit as to the number of hours employees may accumulate; however, any hours
earned and unused in excess of 480 at the end of the calendar year is paid out to the employees at
60%. Upon termination of employment, only 60% of accrued PTO, up to a maximum of 180
hours, is paid to employees.

Accordingly, an estimate for PTO benefits has been accrued as a liability in the financial
statements.

M. Fund Balance Reporting

The governmental funds’ fund balances are reported separately within classifications based on a
hierarchy of the constraints placed on those resources’ use. The classifications are based on the
relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The
classifications are nonspendable, restricted, and unrestricted, which includes committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance classifications.

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either not in spendable form, such as inventories, or are legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balances are those that have externally imposed
restrictions on their usage by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors,
or laws and regulations.

The unrestricted fund balance category is composed of committed, assigned, and unassigned
resources.

Committed fund balances are self-imposed limitations that the Town Council has approved,

which is the highest level of decision-making authority within the Town. Only the Town Council
can remove or change the constraints placed on committed fund balances.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. The Town Council has authorized the
Town manager to assign resources for a specific purpose.

The unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not reported in the other classifications. Also, deficits in fund balances of the
other governmental funds are reported as unassigned.

When an expenditure is incurred that can be paid from either restricted or unrestricted fund
balances, it is the Town’s policy to use (the Town will use) restricted fund balance first. It is the
Town’s policy to use (the Town will use) committed amounts first when disbursing unrestricted
fund balances, followed by assigned amounts, and lastly unassigned amounts.

L. Leases

As lessee, the town recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individual value of $20,000 or
more. The Town uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liabilities unless
it can readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. The Town’s estimated incremental
borrowing rate is based on the Town’s borrowing rate for unsecured debt for a comparable
amount and time period, and then decreased the based on full collateral.

As lessor, the Town recognizes lease receivables with an initial, individual value of $20,000 or
more. If there is no stated rate in the lease contract (or if the stated rate is not the rate the Town
charges the lessee) and the implicit rate cannot be determined, the Town uses its own estimated
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to measure lease receivables. The Town’s
estimated incremental borrowing rate is calculated as described above.

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the Town to invest public monies in the State
Treasurer’s investment pool; obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or any of the
senior debt of its agencies, sponsored agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations, or
instrumentalities; specified state and local government bonds, notes, and other evidences of
indebtedness; interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and
repurchase agreements in eligible depositories; specified commercial paper issued by
corporations organized and doing business in the United States; specified bonds, debentures,
notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in United States dollars; and
certain open-end and closed-end mutual funds, including exchange traded funds. In addition, the
Town Treasurer may invest trust funds in certain fixed income securities of corporations doing
business in the United States or District of Columbia.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — Continued

Credit risk

Statutes have the following requirements for credit risk:

1. Commercial paper must be of prime quality and be rated within the top two ratings by a
nationally recognized rating agency.

2. Bonds, debentures, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in
United States dollars must be rated “A” or better at the time of purchase by at least two
nationally recognized rating agencies.

3. Fixed income securities must carry one of the two highest ratings by Moody’s investor’s
service and Standard and Poor’s rating service. If only one of the above-mentioned services
rates the security, it must carry the highest rating of that service.

Custodial credit risk
Statutes require collateral for deposits at 102 percent of all deposits federal depository insurance
does not cover.

Concentration of credit risk
Statutes do not include any requirements for concentration of credit risk

Interest rate risk
Statutes require that public monies invested in securities and deposits have a maximum maturity
of 5 years. The maximum maturity for investments in repurchase agreements is 180 days.

Foreign currency risk
Statutes do not allow foreign investments unless the investment is denominated in United States
dollars.

The Town’s investment policy states that the Town will conform with Arizona Revised Statutes.
The Town does not have a formal investment policy with respect to custodial credit risk,
concentration of credit risk, or foreign currency risk.

Deposits—At June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of the Town’s total cash in bank was
$2,838,469 and the bank balances were $3,012,172 Of the bank balances, $356,305 was covered
by federal depository insurance or similar insurance. The remainder was covered by collateral
held by the pledging financial institution in the Town’s name.

Restricted cash — Restricted cash in the Utilities Fund consists of monies restricted for
refundable customer deposits in the amount of $31,648.

Investments—The Town reported investments in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool 5 with a
reported amount of $1,874. The Standard and Poor’s credit quality rating of the pool is AAA.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — Continued

The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools. The fair value
of a participant’s position in the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares and
the participant’s shares are not identified with specific investments.

The Town’s Pension Trust Fund had investments in mutual funds of $189,886 at June 30, 2024,
categorized within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles as Level 1. Investments categorized as Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active
markets for those investments.

A reconciliation of cash, deposits, and investments to amounts shown on the statements of net
position follows:

Governmental  Business-type Pension Trust

activities activities Fund Total
Statement of net position:
Cash on hand $ 575 % - $ - $ 575
State Treasurer's investment pool 5 1,874 - - 1,874
Mutual funds - - 189,886 189,886
Cash and cash equivalents 2,629,243 209,226 18,162 2,856,631
Total $ 2,631,692 $ 209226 $ 208,048 $ 3,048,966

NOTE 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS
Amounts due from other governments in the General Fund at June 30, 2024 consisted of $2,168
in state-shared revenue from sales taxes, $1,476 in state-shared revenue from auto lieu taxes, and

$193,245 in local sales taxes collected by the State.

Amounts due from other governments in the HURF Fund at June 30, 2024 consisted of $4,978 in
state-shared revenue from Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) taxes.

Amounts due from other governments in the Grants Fund at June 30, 2024 consisted of $61,487
in various grants revenues from the State of Arizona.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024, was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in process
Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure

Total

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure

Total

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Item A.

Balance Balance
July, 1, 2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024
$ 295,751 $ - $ $ 295751

49,966 16,751 66,717
345,717 16,751 362,468
1,664,480 - 1,664,480
1,909,896 57,551 1,967,447
653,771 62,990 716,761

4,228,147 120,541 4,348,688

(1,157,747) (41,370) (1,199,117)

(1,276,362) (120,681) (1,397,043)

(48,096) (14,196) (62,292)

(2,482,205) (176,247) (2,658,452)

1,745,942 (55,706) 1,690,236
$ 2,091,659 $ (38955 $ $ 2,052,704

Balance Balance

July, 1,2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024
$ 22,080 $ - $ $ 22,080
53,193 632,508 685,701
75,273 632,508 707,781
4,076,885 - 4,076,885
235,211 - 235,211
4,312,096 - 4,312,096

(1,759,676) (86,476) (1,846,152)

(178,766) (10,948) (189,714)

(1,938,442) (97,424) (2,035,866)

2,373,654 (97,424) 2,276,230
$ 2,448,927 $ 535,084 $ $ 2,984,011
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS — Continued
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works and streets
Community development
Culture and recreation
Total governmental activities depreciation expense

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Sanitation and recycling
Total business-type activities depreciation expense

NOTE 5 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following schedule details the Town’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year

ended June 30, 2024.

65,341
89,731
19,817
625
733

176,247

76,451
20,697
276

97,424

Item A.

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2024 1 year
Governmental activities:
Finance purchase $ 10334 - $ 10334 $ - $ -
Net pension liability 142,325 63,150 - 205,475 -
Compensated absences payable 39,052 - 2,106 36,946 27,710
Total governmental activities
long-term liabilities $ 191,711 $ 63,150 § 12440 § 242421 $ 27,710
Business-type activities:
Finance purchase $ 746 $ - $ 746 S - $ -
Note payable from direct
borrowings and direct placement 900,000 - - 900,000 900,000
Compensated absences payable 5,752 332 - 6,084 4,563
Total business-type activities
long-term liabilities $ 906,498 § 332§ 746§ 906,084 § 904,563
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 5 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES — Continued

Arizona Community Foundation loan issued on July 1, 2022, for $900,000. The note bears
interest at 4%. Proceeds used for activities in connection with wastewater treatment plant
improvements. All principal and accrued interest are due December 2024.

NOTE 6 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town carries
commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and
employees’ health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 - PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town participates in two separate retirement plans.

For nonpublic safety employees, the Town contributes eight percent of the employees’ covered
payroll to a defined contribution plan. Employees may contribute to the plan; however, they are
not required to make any contributions the plan. For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Town

contributed a total $84,823 on behalf of employees to the plan.

For public safety employees, the Town contributes to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement
System (PSPRS). PSPRS is a component unit of the State of Arizona.

At June 30, 2024, the Town reported the following amounts related to PSPRS:

Governmental
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities Activities
Net pension liability $ 205,475
Net OPEB Asset (1,727)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB 148,780
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB 7,533

The Town reported $101,232 of pension expenditures in the governmental funds related to all
pension plans to which it contributes.

Plan Description — Town police employees participate in the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) or employees who became members on or after July 1, 2017, may
participate in the Public Safety Personnel Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (PSPDCRP).
The PSPRS administers agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
and agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium benefit
(OPEB) plans. A nine-member board known as the Board of Trustees and the participating local
boards govern the PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4.
Employees who were PSPRS members before July 1, 2017, participate in the agent plans, and
those who became PSPRS members on or after July 1, 2017, participate in the cost-sharing plans
(PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool) which are not further disclosed because of their relative insignificance
to the Town’s financial statements.

The PSPRS issue publicly available financial reports that include their financial statements and
required supplementary information. The reports are available on the PSPRS Web site at
WWW.pSpIs.com.

Benefits Provided — The PSPRS provide retirement, health insurance premium supplement,
disability, and survivor benefits.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued

State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated
on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

PSPRS Initial Membership Date:
Before January 1, 2012 On or after January 1, 2012 and
before July 1, 2017

Retirement and Dis ability

Years of service and age 20 years of service, any age 15 25 years of service or 15 years of
required to receive benefit years of service, age 62 credited service, age 52.5
Final average salary is based Highest 36 consecutive months Highest 36 consecutive months
on of'last 20 years of'last 20 years
Benefit percentage
Normal Retirement 50% less 2.0% for each year of 1.5% to 2.5% per year of credited
credited service less than 20 service, not to exceed 80%

years OR plus 2.0% to 2.5% for
each year of credited services
over 20 years, not to exceed 80%

Accidental Disability 50% or normal retirement, whichever is greater
Retirement

Catastrophic Disability 90% for the first 60 months then reduced to either 62.5% or normal
Retirement retirement, whichever is greater

Ordinary Disability Normal retirement calculated with actual years of credited service or
Retirement 20 years of credited service, whichever is greater, multiplied by years

of credited service (not to exceed 20 years) divided by 20

Survivor Benefit
Retired Members 80% to 100% of retired member's pension benefit

Active Members 80% to 100% of accidental disability retirement benefit or 100% of
average monthly compensation if death was result of injuries
received on the job
Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on
inflation. PSPRS also provides temporary disability benefits of 50 percent of the member’s
compensation for up to 12 months.

Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of
credited service. The benefits are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance
premiums for which the member is responsible. Benefits range from $100 per month to $260 per
month depending on the age of the member and dependents.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — At June 30, 2024, the following employees were
covered by the agent pension plans’ benefit terms:

PSPRS Police

Pension Health
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 2 1
Active employees 3 3
Total 5 4

Contributions — State statutes establish the pension contribution requirements for active PSPRS
employees. In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine employer
contribution requirements for PSPRS pension and health insurance premium benefits. The
combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of
benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. Contributions rates for the year ended June 30, 2024, are indicated below. Rates
are a percentage of active members’ annual covered payroll.

Active Member- Town-Health
Pension Town-Pension Insurance
PSPRS Police 7.65 - 8.81% 13.54% 0.71%

The Town’s contributions to the plans for the year ended June 30, 2024, were:

Health Insurance
Pension Premium Benefit
PSPRS Police $ 34120 $ 1,659

During fiscal year 2024, the Town paid for 100 percent of PSPRS pension and OPEB
contributions from the General Fund.

Liability — At June 30, 2024, the Town reported the following assets and liabilities:

Net Pension Net OPEB (Asset)
Liability Liability
PSPRS Police $ 205,475 $ (1,727)

The net assets and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total liability used to
calculate the net asset or liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued

Actuarial Assumptions — The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total
pension/OPEB liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2023

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Investment rate of return 7.2%

Wage inflation 3.0 - 6.25% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Price inflation 2.5% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Cost-of-living adjustment 1.85% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Mortality rates PubS-2010 tables

Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2021.

The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS plan investments was determined to be 7.2
percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates
of return (expected returns, net of plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term Expected

Geometric Real Rate
Asset Class Target Allocation of Return
U.S Public Equity 24% 3.49%
International Public Equity 16% 4.47%
Global Private Equity 20% 7.18%
Other Assets (Captial Appreciation) 7% 4.83%
Core Bonds 6% 0.45%
Private credit 20% 5.10%
Diversifying Strategies 5% 2.68%
Cash - Mellon 2% (0.35)%
Total 100%
-3] -
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued

Discount Rate — At June 30, 2024, the discount rate used to measure the PSPRS total
pension/OPEB liabilities was 7.2 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the
actuarially determined contribution rate and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the
plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension/OPEB liability.

Changes in the Net Pension/OPEB Liability (Asset)

PSPRS - Police

Balances at June 30, 2023

Changes for the year
Service Cost
Interest on the total liability
Differences between expected and
actual experience in the measurement
of the liability
Changes of assumptions
Contributions-employer
Contributions-employee
Net investment income
Administrative expense
Tiers 1 & 2 Adjustment
Other changes

Net changes
Balances at June 30, 2024

Item A.

Pension
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(@) (W] (@) -(b)

$ 1,260,379 $ 1,118,054 $ 142,325

30,437 - 30,437

92,939 - 92,939

56,502 - 56,502
- 31,532 (31,532)
- 16,126 (16,126)
- 87,082 (87,082)

- (820) 820

- (18,692) 18,692
- 1,500 (1,500)

179,878 116,728 63,150

$ 1,440,257 $ 1,234,782 $ 205,475
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued

PSPRS - Police Health Insurance Premium Benefit
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(@ () (@) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2022 $ 39,038 $ 41,268 $ (2,230)
Changes for the year
Service Cost 1,429 - 1,429
Interest on the total liability 2,914 - 2,914

Differences between expected and
actual experience in the measurement

of the liability 655 - 655
Changes of assumptions - - -
Contributions-employer - 1,353 (1,353)
Net investment income - 3,174 (3,174)
Administrative expense - (32) 32
Net changes 4,998 4,495 503
Balances at June 30, 2023 $ 44,036 $ 45,763 $ (1,727)

Sensitivity of the Town’s Net Pension/OPEB (Asset) Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate — The following table presents the Town’s net pension/OPEB (assets) liabilities calculated
using the discount rate of 7.2 percent, as well as what the Town’s net pension/OPEB (asset)
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.2
percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.2 percent) than the current rate:

Current Discount
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(6.2%) (7.2%) 8.2%)
PSPRS Police
Net pension (asset) liability $ 395,951 $ 205,475 $ 47,047
Net OPEB (asset) liability 3,680 (1,727) (6,300)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the plans’ fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued PSPRS financial reports.

Expense — For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Town recognized the following pension and
OPEB expense:

Pension Expense OPEB Expense
PSPRS Police $ 99,551 $ 1,681
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — At June 30, 2024, the Town reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the
following sources:

PSPRS - Police Health Insurance Premium
Pension Benefit
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences between expected
actual experience $ 94,285 $ 4,157 $ 2,859 $ 3,240
Changes of assumptions 2,513 - 552 136

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on plan

investments 12,240 - 552 -
Town contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 34,120 - 1,659 -
Total $ 143,158 $ 4,157 $ 5,622 $ 3,376

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB resulting
from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase
in the net asset or a reduction of the net liability in the year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
and OPEB will be recognized as expenses as follows:

PSPRS Police

Pension Health
Year ended June 30,

2025 $ 53,628 $ 244
2026 27,421 (1,023)
2027 24,811 1,397
2028 (979) (31)
2029 - -

Thereafter - -
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 8 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Interfund transfers — Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows:

Item A.

Transfer From
Transfer General
To Fund
HURF Fund $ 191,733
Utilities Fund 206,907
$ 398,640

The purpose of the transfers shown above to the Utilities Fund and HURF from the General Fund

was to cover budgeted expenses.
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Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Parking

Fines

and forfeits

Licenses and permits

M iscellaneous

Investment earnings

Donations and grants

Expendi

Total revenues

tures

General government
M agistrate court
Police

Fire

Library
Planning and zoning

Parks

Properties
Parking
Capital

Total expenditures

TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Item A.

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Sale o
Trans

Fund balances, beginning of y ear

Fund balances, end of year

f capital assets
fers

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Year Ended June 30, 2024
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 1,400,000 $ 1,400,000 $ 1,477,092 $ 77,092
472,309 472,309 598,230 125,921
264,750 264,750 175,255 (89,495)
347,000 347,000 377,454 30,454
74,000 74,000 94,689 20,689
32,550 32,550 35,173 2,623
197,541 197,541 25,176 (172,365)
6,000 6,000 23,655 17,655
2,846,000 2,846,000 2,662 (2,843,338)
5,640,150 5,640,150 2,809,386 (2,830,764)
589,037 589,037 533,899 55,138
110,550 110,550 114,056 (3,506)
733,705 733,705 730,416 3,289
543,360 543,360 505,811 37,549
123,960 123,960 114,063 9,897
114,265 114,265 108,627 5,638
23,020 23,020 20,050 2,970
217,058 217,058 173,827 43,231
124,000 124,000 97,309 26,691
2,000,700 2,000,700 11,869 1,988,831
4,579,655 4,579,655 2,409,927 2,169,728
1,060,495 1,060,495 399,459 (661,036)
12,500 12,500 - (12,500)
(482,584) (482,584) (398,640) 83,944
(470,084) (470,084) (398,640) 71,444
590,411 590,411 819 (589,592)
1,644,868 1,644,868 1,644,868 -
$2235279  $2235279  $1,645687 $ (589,592)

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Item A.

HURF Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2024
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 48,500 48,500 $ 48,503 $ 3
Investment earnings 1,000 1,000 3,710 2,710
Total revenues 49,500 49,500 52,213 2,713
Expenditures
Current
Public works and streets 249,645 249,645 140,447 109,198
Debt service
Principal - - 108 (108)
Interest - - - -
Capital outlay - - 50,874 (50,874)
Total expenditures 249,645 249,645 191,429 58,216
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (200,145) (200,145) (139,216) 60,929
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers 200,145 200,145 191,733 (8,412)
Net change in fund balances - - 52,517 52,517
Fund balances, beginning of year 19,649 19,649 19,649 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 19,649 $ 19,649 $ 72,166 $ 52,517

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Item A.

Grants Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2024
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 4,648,200 $ 4,648,200 $ 60,540 $ (4,587,660)
Donations and grants - - 57,555 57,555
Total revenue 4,648,200 4,648,200 118,095 (4,530,105)
Expenditures
Current
General government 535,000 535,000 - 535,000
Public safety - - 35,187 (35,187)
Community development - - 7,957 (7,957)
Capital outlay 2,309,000 2,309,000 74,549 2,234,451
Total expenditures 2,844,000 2,844,000 117,693 2,726,307
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 1,804,200 1,804,200 402 (1,803,798)
Fund balances, beginning of year 249,426 249,426 249,426 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 2,053,626 $ 2,053,626 $ 249,828 $ (1,803,798)

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules
June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) requires the Town to prepare and adopt a balanced budget
annually for each governmental fund. The Town Council must approve such operating budgets
on or before the third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and
hearings required for the adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August.
A.R.S. prohibits expenditures or liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances,
transfers of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department
may be made upon the Town Council’s approval. With the exception of the General Fund, each
fund includes only one department.

NOTE 2 — BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Town’s budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles.
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Net Pension/OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios

PSPRS - Pension

Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual exp erience in the measurement
of the pension liability
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Hall/Parker Settlement
Administrative expense
Tiers 1 & 2 Adjustment
Other changes

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Town's net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
Covered payroll

Town's net pension (asset) liability as a percentage of covered payroll

TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in Town’s

Item A.

Agent Plans
June 30, 2024
Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(2023) (2022) (2021) (2020) (2019) (2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014)
$ 30437 § 31,783 § 36,551 § 40,225 $ 43,190 $ 43,075 $ 43451 $ 28,796 § 33397 $§ 32,631
92,939 80,513 74,004 60,487 53,067 32,409 27,384 22,890 19,718 18,410
_ - - - - - (3,199) 31,147 - (1,024)
56,502 74,635 (16,628) 88,130 10,039 182,031 (5,961) (30,273) (10,398) (36,345)
- 2,315 - - 8,131 - 11,358 13,630 - 2,606
179,878 189,246 93,927 188,842 114,427 257,515 73,033 66,190 42,717 16,278
1,260,379 1,071,133 977,206 788,364 673,937 416,422 343,389 277,199 234,482 218,204
$ 1,440,257  $1,260,379  $1,071,133  § 977,206  $ 788,364  $ 673,937 $416,422 $343,389 §277,199 §$ 234482
$ 31,532 $ 23520 $ 27,158 $ 28278 $ 30,279 $ 33,078 $ 20,572 $ 20,660 § 18279 $ 13,997
16,126 17,383 18,025 18,655 17,455 16,778 17,348 19,027 18,421 15,379
87,082 (45,477) 240,179 10,277 39,141 43,209 51,823 2,358 13,372 40,722
- - - - - (19,614) - - - -
(820) (820) (1,114) (838) (1,680) (1,358) (859) (739) (707) -
(18,692)
1,500 - - - - 112,027 6 (13,001) (269) (26,233)
116,728 (5,394) 284,248 56,372 85,195 184,120 88,890 28,305 49,096 43,865
1,118,054 1,123,448 839,200 782,828 697,633 513,513 424,623 396,318 347,222 303,357
$1,234,782  $1,118,054  §$1,123,448  § 839,200 $ 782,828 $697,633  $ 513,513  $424,623  § 396,318  §$ 347,222
$ 205475 § 142,325 § (52,315) $138,006 $ 5536 $ (23,696) $ (97,091) $ (81,234) $(119,119)  $(112,740)
85.73% 88.71% 104.88% 85.88% 99.30% 103.52% 123.32% 123.66% 142.97% 148.08%
$ 210,802 $ 189,753 $ 165725 $224974 $203,480 $195265 $176917 $ 136,151  §$ 134,655 $ 167,936
97.47% 75.01% -31.57% 61.34% 2.72% -12.14% -54.88% -59.66% -88.46% -67.13%

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in Town’s

Net Pension/OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios

PSPRS - Health Insurance Premium Benefit

Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Differences between expected and actual experience in the measurement
of the pension liability
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Administrative expense
Other changes
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Town's net OPEB (asset) liability - ending (a) - (b)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered payroll

Town's net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of covered payroll

Item A.

Agent Plans
June 30, 2024
Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2017
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 through
(2023) (2022) (2021) (2020) (2019) (2018) (2017) 2015
$ 1,429 §$ 1,484  § 1,687 $ 1924 $ 1269 $ 1,601 $ 1,521 Information
2,914 2,583 2,597 2,285 2,337 1,289 1,216  not available
655 273 (4,261) 724 (5,243) 10,803 (353)
- 792 - - 275 - (1,214)
4,998 5,132 23 4,933 (1,362) 13,693 1,170
39,038 33,906 33,883 28,950 30,312 16,619 15,449
$ 44036 $ 39,038 $§ 33906 $ 33,883 $ 28950 $ 30312 $ 16,619
$ 1,353 §$ 1,328  § 1,805 $ 1,695 $ 982 $ 957  $ 651
3,174 (1,655) 8,671 371 1,475 1,703 2,500
(32) (29) (36) (30) (25) (26) (23)
- - - - - 1) -
4,495 (356) 10,440 2,036 2,432 2,633 3,128
41,268 41,624 31,184 29,148 26,716 24,083 20,955
$ 45763 $ 41268 $§ 41,624 $ 31,184 § 29,148 $§ 26,716 $ 24,083
$  (1,727) $ (2230) $ (7,718) $ 2,699 § (198) $ 359 § (7.464)
103.92% 105.71% 122.76% 92.03% 100.68% 88.14% 144.91%
$ 249266 $ 189,753 § 165,725 $224974 $203,480 $ 195265 $ 176917
-0.69% -1.18% -4.66% 1.20% -0.10% 1.84% -4.22%

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.

_4)2 -

48




Actuarially determined contribution
Town's contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Town's contribution deficiency (excess)
Town's covered-employee payroll
Town's contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

Actuarially determined contribution
Town's contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Town's contribution deficiency (excess)
Town's covered payroll

Town's contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Town Pension/OPEB Contributions
June 30, 2024

PSPRS - Pension
Reporting Fiscal Year

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
$ 34,120 $ 24456 $ 24323 § 27,158 § 28276 § 30,279 $ 33,078

(34,120)  (24456)  (24323)  (27,158)  (28.276)  (30279)  (33,078)

Item A.

2016 2015

$ 20,660 $ 18,279

(20,660) (18,279)

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

_ 3 _

$ 249,266  $ 189,753  $ 165,725  $235,033  $214,538  $203,480 §$ 195,265
13.69% 12.89% 14.68% 11.55% 13.18% 14.88% 16.94%
PSPRS - Health Insurance Premium Benefit
Reporting Fiscal Year
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
$ 1,659 $ 1,030 $ 1,693 $ 1,805 $ 1,695 § 982 $ 957

(1,659) (1,030) (1,693) (1,805) (1,695) (982) (957)

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

$ 249,266 $189,753  §$165,725 $235033 $214,538 §$203,480 $ 195265

0.67% 0.54% 1.02% 0.77% 0.79% 0.48% 0.49%

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Pension/OPEB Plan Schedules

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - ACTUARIALLY DETERMINED CONTRIBUTION RATES

Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to
the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are made. The actuarial methods and

assumptions used to establish the contribution requirements are as follows:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period as of
the 2022 actuarial valuation
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return

Projected salary increases

Wage growth

Retirement age

Mortality

Entry age normal
Level percent-of-pay, closed

15 years
7-year smoothed market value; 80%/120% market corridor

In the 2022 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was
decreased from 7.3% to 7.2%. In the 2019 actuarial valuation, the
investment rate of return was decreased from 7.4% to 7.3%. In
2017 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was
decreased from 7.5% to 7.4%. In the 2016 actuarial valuation, the
investment rate of return was decreased from 7.85% to 7.5%. In
the 2013 actuarial valuation, the investmnet rate of return wes
decreased form 8.0% to 7.85%.

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were
decreased from 4.0%—8.0% to 3.5%—7.5% for PSPRS. In the 2014
actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were decreased
from 4.5%—-8.5% to 4.0%—8.0% for PSPRS. In the 2013 actuarial
valuation, projected salary increases were decreased from
5.0%—9.0% to 4.5%—8.5% for PSPRS.

In the 2022 actuarial valuation, wage growth was changed from
3.5% to a range of 3.0% - 6.25%. In the 2017 actuarial valuation,
wage growth was decreased from 4% to 3.5%. In the 2014
actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 4.5% to
4.0%. In the 2013 actuarial valuaton, wage growth was
decreased from 5.0% to 4.5%.

Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of
eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2012 valuation
pursuant to an experience study of the period July 1, 2006 - June
30, 2011.

In the 2019 acturial valuation, changed to PubS-2010 tables. In
the 2017 actuarial valuation, changed to RP-2014 tables, with
75% of MP-2016 fully generational projection scales. RP-2000
mortality table (adjusted by 105% for both males and females)
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Pension/OPEB Plan Schedules

June 30, 2024

NOTE 2 — FACTORS THAT AFFECT TRENDS

Arizona courts have ruled that provisions of a 2011 law that changed the mechanism for funding
permanent pension benefit increases and increased employee pension contribution rates were
unconstitutional or a breach of contract because those provisions apply to individuals who were
members as of the law’s effective date. As a result, the PSPRS changed benefit terms to reflect
the prior mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases for those members and revised
actuarial assumptions to explicitly value future permanent benefit increases. PSPRS also reduced
those members’ employee contribution rates. These changes are reflected in the plans’ pension
liabilities for fiscal year 2015 (measurement date 2014) for members who were retired as of the
law’s effective date and fiscal year 2018 (measurement date 2017) for members who retired or
will retire after the law’s effective date.

These changes also increased the PSPRS-required pension contributions beginning in fiscal year
2016 for members who were retired as of the law’s effective date. These changes increased the
PSPRS-required contributions beginning in fiscal year 2019 for members who retired or will
retire after the law’s effective date. Also, the Town refunded excess employee contributions to
PSPRS members. PSPRS allowed the Town to reduce its actual employer contributions for the
refund amounts. As a result, the Town’s pension contributions were less than the actuarially or
statutorily determined contributions for 2018 and 2019.

_45 -

Item A.

51




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Item A.
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TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA

Other Supplementary Information

Segmented Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel
Depreciation
Contract services
Repairs and maintenance
Office
Fees and permits
Insurance
Fuel
Miscellaneous
Legal and professional
Tools and equipment
Utilities

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest expense

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfer out
Transfer in

Increase (decrease) in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

in Fund Net Position
Utilities Fund

Item A.

Year Ended June 30, 2024
Total
Water Sewer Sanitation Utilities
Utility Utility Utility Fund
$ 171,263 $ 166,328 $ 175,756 $ 513,847
846 - - 846
172,109 166,828 175,756 514,693
125,938 68,222 110,328 304,488
76,451 20,697 276 97,424
12,300 39,900 1,800 54,000
51,504 50,254 9,858 111,616
16,868 14,431 4,048 35,347
420 2,913 19,772 23,105
16,561 16,561 16,561 49,683
3,529 1,708 6,705 11,942
1,505 1,879 1,673 5,057
728 1,233 - 1,961
516 250 - 766
452 2,426 - 2,878
306,772 220,474 171,021 698,267
(134,663) (53,646) 4,735 (183,574)
(6) (36,006) - (36,012)
(134,669) (89,652) 4,735 (219,586)
(57,012) (57,012) (67,012) (181,036)
76,206 248,044 63,693 387,943
(115,475) 101,380 1,416 (12,679)
1,691,630 708,837 (177,378) 2,223,089
$1,576,155 $ 810,217 $ (175962)  $2,210,410
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COLBY &
PowzELL, pPLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1535 W. Harvard Avenue, Suite 101 - Gilbert, Arizona 85233
Tel: (480) 635-3200 - Fax: (480) 635-3201

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Town Council
Town of Jerome, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the
Town of Jerome, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 8, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of
Jerome, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Jerome, Arizona’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Colly + Bl

January 10, 2024
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File Attachments for ltem:

C. Consideration of a Tour Company Business License Application for Wicked City
Tours, LLC

Council will consider and may approve the tour company business license application.
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Town of Jerome license#t 201 (3 L*"°

Post Office Box 335, Jerome, AZ 86331
(928) 634-7943 * www.jerome.az.com

TOUR COMPANY BUSINESS LICENSE APPLICATION

Name of Business WEKES 1y TowRs L
AZ TPT License # _Z-\ boo g Lf =2 Current TPT License must also be submitted Oonfile

5“"/ Soile A3 €633 (Vv
core A2 RB3

Physical Address of Business

Mailing Addres

Business Phone 1 28 ~2774-b( % Zell Email ¥\elkey C\WU\EJ@?M«’ .

Type of Tours: (O Driving Eﬁ(ing (J Both
Anyone Operating a Tour Vehicle MUST have a Current Arizona Driver’s License

Estimated gross annual revenue (J$2,500 - $10,000 (license fee: $20) @O/ver $10,000 (license fee: $50)

Business Ownerl-sgw“ w) Mr)o'(‘z-
Signature “ _— Date 2/)12/2028

By my signature above, | certify, under penalty of law, that the information provided herein is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

This Licensee acknowledges that to operate the above business in accordance with Section 8-5-1 of the Jerome Town Code, it is subject to
Licensee's compliance with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and requirements regarding Licensee's activities, including, but not limited to, zoning
regulations, building code requirements, and fire code requirements. Issuance of this license shall not be construed as evidence of Licensee's
compliance with such regulations and requirements, and it is the responsibility of the Licensee to assure such compliance prior to commencing

business operations.

Checklist of requirements:

Eﬁe proposed routes of all tours, including a legible map of the Town clearly showing all routes,
stopping points, pick-up and drop-off points, and the business’s parking area.

Comments:/'\.&-"f Siacys Aﬂféf ng/g &,f UDCc,\[.oA C"‘*‘(AQ?D\’L

O Acceptable evidence of liability insurance naming the Town of Jerome as an additional insured. The
minimum limit of liability for each applicable coverage shall be $1,000,000.00.

Comments UD\L\\ aol(—:\- LA"—Z-U'(‘AV\C,O. Lloser «!Z) —\'{NJ- ‘2‘54‘,\15) 6\&(‘“’\!1%

%copy of the State of Arizona license of any driver who will be operating a tour vehicle.

Comments \Q/ﬁ(

All documentation must be provided no later than two (2) full weeks before the next Council Meeting.

Next Council Meeting Deadline
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Secondary (Back-up) Council Meeting Deadline

Continuance (if applicable) Deadline

COUNCIL DECISION

O Approved O penied Date of Council Approval

If denied, provide comments:

For Town Staff Only

i
Date application submitted 1/ 9 / fL 5 Accepted by lé /y) [JAccess [JExcel [JScanned

g 74
Payment: [1$20 50 Ocash  OCredit Card Kfcr@c(%# ﬁ’/l“s’o Payment Date V’,/ X// AS

Utilities/Classification /(/ A;/ ( tnd [ l)frj Arjj’ Status: \JCurrent [130days Past Due [130+ Days

O Approved I penied Date
Zoning Administrator

O approved O penied Date
Fire Chief

O approved [ penied Date
Building Official

O Approved [ Denied Date

Town Manager

If denied, reason for denial:

Date Issued Expiration Date

*Attach hard copies of all required documents and file in Business License folders.
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CHECKLIST-TOUR BUSINESS APPLICATION-UPDATED 3/4/2025

This document is a list of information that may need to be included, depending on applicability, with an application

for a Jerome Tour Business License. All information must be turned into the Town Clerk at least 2 weeks prior to an

upcoming Council Meeting to be placed on the agenda for consideration.

~®/ 1. A completed Town of Jerome Business License Application.

\d 2. A copy of your current Arizona TPT license.

Wil be by hme of mefing

O 3. Fee paid to the Town of Jerome for Business License Application (see below).

Estimated gross annual revenue:
$2,500 - $10,000 (license fee: $20)) Over $10,000 (license fee: $50) ﬁ

_ Map Moy need Jo be More clear Pos (econds
@ 4. The proposed routes of all tours, including a legible map of the Town clearly
showing all routes, stopping points, pick-up and drop-off points, and the
business’s parking area.
Jerome Town Code, Section 8-5-5 ‘Routes’ B. The proposed routes of all tour businesses shall be approved in
advance by the Town Council. The submittal seeking approval shall include a legible map of the Town clearly
showing all routes, stopping points, pick-up and drop-off points, and the business’s parking area.

"IN Progress
5. Acceptable evidence of liability insurance naming the Town of Jerome as an

additional insured. The minimum limit of liability for each applicable coverage

shall be $1,000,000.00.
Jerome Town Code Section 8-5-6 ‘General Provisions’ D. No tour business shall operate within the jurisdiction of
the Town of Jerome unless it has first provided acceptable evidence of liability insurance, naming the Town of
Jerome as an additional insured. The minimum limit of liability for each applicable coverage shall be
$1,000,000.00.

Type of Tours: QO Driving mValking O Both

Anyone Operating a Tour Vehicle MUST have a Current Arizona Driver’s License

O 6. A copy of the State of Arizona license of any driver who will be operating a tour
vehicle.
Jerome Town Code, Section 8-5-6 ‘General Provisions’ E. All drivers of tour vehicles shall maintain a current
driver’s license issued by the State of Arizona. A copy of each driver’s license shall be filed by the tour business
with the Town prior to that driver operating any tour business vehicle.

RECOMMENDED: Read Jerome Town Code Chapter 8, Section 5 ‘Tour Business Code, to familiarize yourself with
all ordinances regarding tour businesses. Available to the public at: https://jerome.az.gov/jerome-town-code

If you have any questions, please contact the Deputy Clerk at k. muenz@jerome.as.gov or 928-634-7943
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ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
ATTN: Customer Care and Outreach
PO BOX 29032

PHOENIX, AZ 85038-8032

[Bitar oeus ]
"‘:’% -~
T e

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX LICENSE
NOT TRANSFERABLE

The licensee listed below is licensed to conduct business upon the condition that taxes are paid to
Arizona Department of Revenue as required under provisions of A.R.S. Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1.

2025
ISSUED TO: WICKED CITY TOURS LLC ALL communications and B> LICENSE:
WICKED CITY TOURS TP e CENeE N, START DATE: 03/01/2025

ISSUED: 03/03/2025
EXPIRES: 12/31/2025

LocATION: CODE 001
WICKED CITY TOURS
403 CLARK ST A3
JEROME AZ 86331
2500069586378
ALY DA L0900 GERY 0 I T

BUSINESS CODE REGION JURISDICTION
012 - AMUSEMENT YAV - YAVAPAI COUNTY

017 - RETAIL YAV - YAVAPAI COUNTY

029 - USE TAX YAV - YAVAPAI COUNTY

012 - AMUSEMENT JO - JEROME CITY

017 - RETAIL JO - JEROME CITY

This License is issued to the business named above for the address shown. Licenses, by law, cannot be transferred from one person to another, nor can they be
transferred from one location to another. Arizona law requires licensees to notify the Department of Revenue if there is a change in business name, trade name,

001740202F0000P7088760200174

location, mailing address, or ownership. In addition, when the business ceases to operate or the business location changes and a new license is issued, this licer
must be returned to the Arizona Department of Revenue. According to R15-5-2201, license must be displayed in a conspicuous place.
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ﬁ’(’
HISCOX

encourage courage’

A Guide To Your General Liability Policy

The following is a guide to your General Liability policy. We have identified several key coverage items along with the limits and
deductibles you have selected. To make it easier, we have also added a brief explanation of those items.

We want you to feel confident about your new policy. If any of the information below is incorrect or if you have any questions,

please contact one of our advisors at 844-357-0840 (Mon-Fri, 7am-10pm ET) or manage your policy at: www.hiscox.com/
manage-your-policy.

Your business details

Name: Matt Moore
Business Name: Wicked City Tours LLC DBA Wicked City Tours
Address: 403 Clark St
A3
City: Jerome
State: AZ
Zip code: 86331
Occupation: Public relations
Telephone number: _
Email address: wickedcitytours @gmail.com

Your General Liability Policy

Policy number: P104.721.462.1
Policy effective dates: From: April 8, 2025
This determines the time period during which your coverage applies. To: April 8, 2026

Form of business:
This identifies the legal structure of your business and determines who is Limited Liability Company
insured under your policy.

Business Property and Equipment Coverage: Rejected
Optional terrorism coverage: Excluded
Total cost of policy: $ 346.00

Your coverage and limits

Each occurrence limit $ 1,000,000
The most we will pay for all damages due to badily injury and property

damage, and medical expenses that arise out of any one occurrence.

Defense costs we incur, in the defense of a lawsuit filed against you, will not

reduce this limit.

© Hiscox Inc. 2010 Page
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General aggregate limit $ 2,000,000
The most we will pay for all damages and medical expenses for the entire

policy. Defense costs we incur, in the defense of a lawsuit filed against you,

will not reduce this limit.

Medical expenses $ 5,000 any one person
The most we will pay for all medical expenses sustained by any one person.

Deductible for General Liability Coverage No deductible
However, a $1,000 per occurrence deductible does apply to properties
managed by you, premises listed by you or shown by you for sale or rental.

Other policy information

Notice of claim
If you have a claim, please call us at 866-424-8508. You may also e-mail us at reportaclaim@hiscox.com

What does my General Liability Policy cover?
For a summary showing examples of what you are and are not covered for, please read the Coverage Summary
document.

This guide does not modify the terms and conditions of your policy, which are contained in your policy documents,
nor does it imply any claim is covered or not covered. We recommend that you read your policy documents to learn
the details of your coverage.

© Hiscox Inc. 2010 Page 2| ¢
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Q, Search mail |
¢« ® 0 B S & y«ﬁsv mz}oﬁ eSue s mfsf>mkz,m,\o?

UVX Parking inbox =
Jerome UVX Om:»mI Mon, Apr 7, 1259PM (21 hoursago) Y

tome =

Matt

34

s Per our conversation earlier today, there are approximately 27 parking spaces available in the UVX parking lot to the northeast of the @
available to your tour business on a first come first serve basis. Additionally, there are three more parking spaces that are available or .
first serve basis at the entrance to the alleyway.

We ask that all vehicles refrain from obstructing flow of traffic in the alleyway as well as in our parking lot. You and your customers are
+ park in the parking lot or in the alleyway parking spaces.

Jerome UVX Center

This email is strictly for the intended recipient and no re-transmission or distribution is allowed. The above communication may be considered legal notice. Please be advisec _
payments & fees are subject to collection from deposits. This e-mail, and any attachments, contains information that is, or may be, covered by electronic communications priv _,
confidential and proprietary in nature. If you are not the intended recipient, please be advised that you are legally prohibited from retaining, using, copying, distributing, or othk
information in any manner. Instead, please reply to the sender that you have received this communication in eror, and then immediately delete it. |

.ﬁ Thank you for the information!

ﬁ This is great, thank you! q P Thank you, | will let you know. 4 “

s - .

~

Tours



File Attachments for ltem:

D. Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget Work Session

Council will continue their discussions regarding the 2025-2026 budget, including a review of an
initial draft budget. All aspects of the budget may be discussed and Council may provide staff
direction regarding the 2025-2026 budget.
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget

Period 04/25 {04/30/2025)

Item D.
Page:

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

Report Criteria:
Includes all accounts
Includes grand totals

Includes budget notes with general notes and with year ending periods: Future year, 06/26

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Prior year Current year Current year Proposed Budget
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
GENERAL FUND
TAX REVENUE
10-30-4001 Property Taxes 47,500.91 47,500.00 35,829.86 47,500.00
10-30-4005 City Sales Taxes 1,373,905.24 1,450,000.00 846,356.13 1,478,750.00
10-30-4010 State Sales Taxes 70,072.31 71,000.00 52,265.95 74,000.00
10-30-4030 Vehicle License Tax 39,408.25 40,000.00 31,196.48 40,000.00
10-30-4055 Franchise Fees 19,089.73 17,250.00 9,485.95 17,250.00
Total TAX REVENUE: 1,549,976.44 1,625,750.00 975,134.37 1,657,500.00
LICENSES, PERMITS&OTHER FEES
10-31-4040 Building Permits 9,313.00 12,500.00 4,787.49 12,000.00
10-31-4041 Planning & Zoning Fees 2,200.00 3,500.00 325.00 3,000.00
10-31-4045 Business Licenses 4,270.00 5,500.00 3,780.00 5,000.00
10-31-4050 Commercial Filming Fees .00 .00 .00 .00
10-31-4071 Fees-Short Term Rental License 300.00 450.00 150.00 450.00
Budget notes:
STR Rental License Fees
Total LICENSES, PERMITS80OTHER FEES: 16,083.00 21,950.00 9,042.49 20,450.00
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
10-32-4015 Urban Revenue Share 397,487.28 330,000.00 265,909.90 305,000.00
Budget notes:
~2026 New Formula with 2-year Lag Time
Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE: 397,487.28 330,000.00 265,909.90 305,000.00
LIBRARY REVENUE
10-33-4020 Yavapai County for Library 19,914.85 18,172.00 9,085.89 18,150.00
10-33-4070 Rents-Library 9,234.84 10,250.00 7,520.04 10,250.00
10-33-4200 Library Contributions 2,662.00 2,500.00 30.00 2,000.00
Total LIBRARY REVENUE: 31,811.69 30,922.00 16,635.93 30,400.00
POLICE DEPT REVENUE
10-34-4061 PD Parking Citation Revenue 31,830.45 37,000.00 35,580.25 40,000.00
10-34-4062 PD Revenue From Parking Fund 162.50 40,000.00 29,999.97 45,000.00
10-34-4063 Police Smart & Safe AZ Fund 11,073.31 10,000.00 6,773.39 11,000.00
10-34-4064 Police Officer Safety Equip Re 1,592.65 2,000.00 1,392.45 2,000.00
10-34-4065 Police Services 3,566.51 7,000.00 2,380.00 4,500.00
Total POLICE DEPT REVENUE: 48,225.42 96,000.00 76,126.06 102,500.00
COURT REVENUE
10-35-4035 Fines and Forfeitures 54,538.65 59,000.00 40,380.16 57,000.00
Budget notes:
~2026 Fines & Forfeitures 45000

Fines & Forfeitures - Parking Tickets 12000
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 2

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
10-35-4037 Court Security Fund Revenue 8,319.67 10,000.00 6,843.33
Total COURT REVENUE: 62,858.32 69,000.00 47,223.49
RENTAL REVENUE
10-36-4070 Rents-Town Properties 83,935.54 87,000.00 60,876.20
Budget notes:
~2026 Town Hall Rents (bottom floor) goes to 10-33-4070
Property Rentals incl Holly Avenue & Main Street
10-36-4080 Utility Reimbursements 5,200.76 5,750.00 3,913.68
Total RENTAL REVENUE: 89,136.30 92,750.00 64,789.88
FIRE DEPT REVENUE
10-37-4053 Fire Dept Services Rev 3,966.42 25,500.00 2,246.41
10-37-4090 Wildland Fire Fees 71,347.77 65,500.00 73,969.91
10-37-4091 Wildlands Wage Reimbursement 72,659.70 52,000.00 66,167.67
10-37-4092 Firewise Wage Reimbursement .00 .00 .00
Total FIRE DEPT REVENUE: 147,973.88 143,000.00 142,383.99
GENERAL FUND REVENUE
10-38-4000 Fund Balance Reserves .00 407,000.00 305,250.03
Budget notes:
2025 - Use of Reserve $407,000 includes $19,000 for Police Vehicle
~2026 Use of Reserve $325,000
10-38-4200 Contributions .00 .00 .00
10-38-4300 Interest 13,634.63 14,000.00 8,732.39
10-38-4400 Sale of Assets .00 12,500.00 .00
Budget notes:
~2026 Public Surplus/GovDeals
10-38-4500 Miscellaneous Revenues 13,292.19 4,500.00 8,402.39
10-38-4510 Ins Dividends,Claims,Reimbursm 5,090.71 10,000.00 .00
Total GENERAL FUND REVENUE: 32,017.53 448,000.00 322,384.81
ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES
10-39-4600 Administrative Charges 185,040.00 191,623.00 143,664.75
Budget notes:
~2026 Administration Charge from Utilities Funds 181,650
Administration Charge from Parking Fund 6,260
Administration Charge from HURF Fund 9,185
10-39-4900 Transfers In 64,000.00 .00 .00
Total ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES: 249,040.00 191,623.00 143,664.75
GENERAL GOVT EXPENSES
10-41-5001 Salaries and Wages 255,826.93 282,000.00 206,575.26
10-41-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 9,023.07- .00 .00
10-41-5006 Longevity Bonus 1,067.00 2,000.00 859.00
10-41-5007 Payment in Lieu of Medical Ben .00 .00 .00

2025-26

Proposed Budget

10,000.00

67,000.00

93,000.00

5,000.00

98,000.00

12,500.00

77,000.00

75,000.00
.00

164,500.00

325,000.00

.00
13,500.00
12,500.00

13,000.00
10,000.00

374,000.00

197,095.00

.00

197,095.00

285,000.00
.00
2,000.00
.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page:
Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
10-41-5010 FICA Match 18,907.94 21,750.00 15,562.12
10-41-5011 Retirement Match 22,618.21 30,000.00 22,682.06
10-41-5012 Health/Life Insurance 58,391.82 64,000.00 50,782.75
10-41-5013 Workers Compensation 1,502.50 1,500.00 1,257.59
10-41-5014 Unemployment Insurance 29.47 300.00 81.20
10-41-6101 Accounting and Auditing 23,000.00 20,000.00 23,500.00
10-41-6105 Advertising, Printing, & Publi 3,906.86 4,250.00 656.21
10-41-6110 Contract Services 18,484.00 32,000.00 9,054.80
Budget notes:
~2026 Contract Services - ArchiveSocial 6,000
Contract Services - Codification and Web 5,000
Intemet - New Much Higher Rate 22,000
10-41-6115 Conventions and Seminars 1,818.96 2,500.00 2,740.17
10-41-6116 Training & Education 2,025.81 2,500.00 2,316.56
10-41-6125 Dues, Subs & Memberships 7,609.86 7,500.00 4,851.93
10-41-6126 TPT Collection Fee Exp .00 .00 .00
10-41-6130 Election expenses 1,970.12 2,250.00 1,016.64
10-41-6145 Fuel 557.42 650.00 398.27
10-41-6155 Insurance 49,820.34 27,500.00 23,094.87
10-41-6156 Insurance Deductible Exp .00 .00 .00
10-41-6160 COVID Expenses .00 .00 .00
10-41-6170 Legal Exp - Gen Gov 7,207.50 13,000.00 6,893.20
10-41-6185 Miscellaneous 4,231.25 4,000.00 5,850.15
10-41-6186 Bank Fees - Gen Admin 1.864.99 2,000.00 1,625.17
10-41-6188 Bank Fees / Merch Svcs 1,974.66 4,500.00 1,660.76
10-41-6190 Office Supplies 10,055.80 8,500.00 5,941.60
10-41-6191 Copier & Equip Lease Expense 5,016.43 6,000.00 4,040.19
10-41-6192 Software Support Exp - GG 24,206.71 27,500.00 26,769.10
Budget notes:
~2026 Caselle
4D IT
Yavapai County Intemet
10-41-6193 Computer Hardware & Service 347.50 7,000.00 1,848.75
10-41-6195 Operating Supplies - Gen Gov 278.53 1,500.00 837.67
10-41-6200 Postage 4,069.61 4,000.00 2,853.70
10-41-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 5,493.66 1,750.00 2,082.92
10-41-6245 Shuttle Expenses 3,922.97 3,500.00 3,480.10
10-41-6250 Small Tools and Equipment .00 10,000.00 .00
Budget notes:
~2026 Town Hall Security Enhancements
10-41-6265 Telephone 2,674.11 2,750.00 2,062.83
10-41-6275 Travel 207.62 1,500.00 151.28
10-41-6285 Tourism 1% Bed Tax 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,466.67
10-41-6286 Community Health .00 500.00 .00
10-41-6287 Allowance for preservation of .00 .00 .00
10-41-6288 Outside Agency Request .00 .00 .00
Budget notes:
~2026 FVR $1,500
10-41-6290 Bad Debt Expense .00 .00 .00
10-41-7025 Capital outlay - UTV .00 .00 .00
10-41-9500 Transfers Out 271,583.96 298,000.00 223,499.97

Budget notes:

2025-26
Proposed Budget

22,000.00
31,000.00
67,000.00
1,650.00
280.00
24,000.00
4,000.00
33,000.00

3,250.00
2,750.00
75,000.00
.00
1,000.00
650.00
32,500.00
.00

.00
13,000.00
6,000.00
2,000.00
3,500.00
8,500.00
6,000.00
29,000.00

3,500.00
1,500.00
4,250.00
2,000.00
3,500.00
7,600.00

2,800.00
1,500.00
11,000.00
750.00
.00
1,500.00

.00
.00
210,000.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 4
Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

~2026 Transfer to Utilities Fund - Water 100,000
Transfer to Utilities Fund - Sanitation 70,000
Transfer to Sewer Fund 90,000

Total GENERAL GOVT EXPENSES:

MAGISTRATE COURT EXPENSES

10-42-5001 Salaries and Wages

10-42-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages

10-42-5006 Longevity Bonus

10-42-5010 FICA and Medicare

10-42-5011 Retirement

10-42-5012 Health/Life Insurance

10-42-5013 Worker's Compensation

10-42-5014 Unemployment

10-42-6037 Court Security Fund Expenses
Budget notes:

Monthly Service Fees/ Dedicated Court Officer

10-42-6101 Accounting and Auditing
10-42-6110 Contract Services
10-42-6115 Conventions and Seminars
10-42-6116 Training & Education
10-42-6125 Dues and Subscriptions
10-42-6185 Miscellaneous

10-42-6190 Office Supplies
10-42-6191 Copier & Equip Lease Exp
10-42-6195 Operating Supplies - Court
10-42-6265 Telephone

10-42-6275 Travel

Total MAGISTRATE COURT EXPENSES:

POLICE DEPT EXPENSES
10-43-5001 Salaries and Wages
10-43-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages
10-43-5006 Longevity Bonus
10-43-5010 FICA and Medicare
10-43-5011 Retirement

Budget notes:

~2026 Includes $10K-$15K for PSPRS Shortage

10-43-5012 Health Insurance
10-43-5013 Worker's Compensation
10-43-5014 Unemployment

10-43-5020 Payroll Adjustment-Police
10-43-6105 Advertising, Printing, & Publi
10-43-6110 Contract Services
10-43-6116 Training & Education
10-43-6120 Dispatch Fees

10-43-6125 Dues and Subscriptions
10-43-6145 Fuel

10-43-6172 Prosecutor Exp

10-43-6185 Miscellaneous

10-43-6192 Software Service & Support
10-43-6193 Computer Hardware & Service

811,649.47 906,700.00 665,393.49
69,107.78 72,000.00 49,700.86
2,902.46- 00 .00
220.00 250.00 70.00
5,076.76 5,500.00 3,716.03
5,150.16 3,800.00 5,701.64
18,089.19 18,750.00 12,991.50
222.29 230.00 170.52
9.04 100.00 39.91
927.11 8,000.00 709.64
00 00 6,000.00
4,363.37 6,000.00 11,814.50
86.11 00 00
475.00 750.00 00
313.32 450.00 544.49
4377 200.00 33.51

00 300.00 67.54
3,587.40 3,750.00 3,677.08
169.84 200.00 00
905.90 850.00 679.82
489.87 750.00 00
106,334.45 121,880.00 95,917.04
432,565.57 460,000.00 325,477.04
18,365.54- .00 .00
1,910.00 2,200.00 1,269.00
32,419.39 36,000.00 24,445.20
52,474.74 62,000.00 41,485.72
74,360.39 70,000.00 54,818.00
30,012.61 30,000.00 24,410.02
49.39 650.00 11375
1,306.64- .00 00
470.55 300.00 90.90
43134 1,000.00 845.00
2,197.00 4,000.00 1,754.00
43,832.28 48,000.00 35,617.88
2,203.32 1,500.00 2,734.53
11,035.55 11,250.00 7,561.51
22,000.00 24,000.00 20,000.00
303.70 500.00 138.12
6,530.29 9,250.00 10,088.68
2,368.98 5,000.00 5,121.02

802,880.00

68,000.00
.00
290.00
5,200.00
4,400.00
18,750.00
230.00
100.00
7,000.00

6,000.00
10,500.00
400.00
500.00
300.00
200.00
200.00
3,750.00
200.00
900.00
750.00

127,670.00

440,000.00
.00
1,750.00
34,750.00
60,000.00

70,000.00
31,000.00
600.00
.00
300.00
1,250.00
4,000.00
50,000.00
2,000.00
12,000.00
24,000.00
500.00
11,000.00
5,500.00
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Page:
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2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
10-43-6195 Operating Supplies - Palice 1,662.65 2,250.00 1,277.41
10-43-6200 Postage 25.10 200.00 165.68
10-43-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 8,269.60 8,000.00 5,935.85
10-43-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 1,221.97 4,000.00 1,959.10
10-43-6234 Police Officer Safety Equip Ex 2,767.60 2,500.00 716.22
10-43-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 2,042.69 3,000.00 2,350.92
10-43-6265 Telephone 8,421.71 7,250.00 5,895.61
10-43-6280 Uniforms 4,716.67 3,250.00 1,631.14
10-43-7025 Vehicles, Cap Outtay, Police .00 42,000.00 34,950.00
10-43-8040 Lease Payments 5,295.28 .00 .00

Total POLICE DEPT EXPENSES: 730,416.19 838,100.00 610,852.30
FIRE DEPT EXPENSES
10-44-5001 Salaries and Wages 210,261.94 350,000.00 215,602.72

Budget notes:
~2026 Allowance for Weekend Staffing $17,500
Includes 2 Firewise Employees

10-44-5002 Wildland Personnel 63,312.70 39,000.00 18,083.33
10-44-5003 Volunteer-Employee Per Call Pe 22,110.00 27,500.00 19,481.02
10-44-5004 Firewise Personnel .00 .00 .00
10-44-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 6,525.72- .00 .00
10-44-5006 Longevity Bonus 1,362.00 1,400.00 724.00
10-44-5007 Payment in Lieu of Benefits 7.597.26 7,400.00 5,627.60
10-44-5010 FICA and Medicare 22,613.19 29,000.00 20,555.74
10-44-5011 Retirement 26,321.02 35,000.00 23,714.18
10-44-5012 Health Insurance 42,008.73 75,000.00 38,771.33
10-44-5013 Worker's Compensation 21,225.43 28,000.00 18,688.10
10-44-5014 Unemployment 30.96 800.00 75.85
10-44-5015 Retirement - Volunteer Contrib 15,000.00 .00 .00
10-44-5020 Payroll Adjustment-Fire .00 .00 .00
10-44-6110 Contract Services .00 .00 .00
10-44-6116 Training & Education 4,294.94 7,000.00 8,345.58
10-44-6120 Dispatch Fees 7,413.00 8,000.00 6,138.03
10-44-6125 Dues and Subscriptions 499.88 750.00 1,021.47
10-44-6145 Fuel 7,784.96 9,000.00 3,653.19
10-44-6170 Legal Exp - Fire 202.50 500.00 .00
10-44-6180 Medical Expenses 404.53 1,000.00 65.00
10-44-6181 Medical Supplies Exp 5,103.61 4,250.00 4,609.71
10-44-6185 Miscellaneous 784.30 1,200.00 409.08
10-44-6192 Software Service & Support 1,880.14 1,850.00 3,916.11
10-44-6193 Computer Hardware and Service 2,772.77 2,000.00 822.18
10-44-6195 Operating Supplies - Fire Dept 846.44 1,500.00 706.35
10-44-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 17,070.78 12,500.00 7,943.95
10-44-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 2,143.18 4,000.00 289.87
10-44-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 12,132.83 10,000.00 6,435.46
10-44-6265 Telephone 3,710.62 3,750.00 3,622.59
10-44-6270 Training Center Assessment 2,692.00 2,750.00 2,692.00
10-44-6276 Miscellaneous Wildland 10,757.07 .00 8,295.62
10-44-6285 Utilities .00 .00 .00

2025-26
Proposed Budget

2,000.00
200.00
9,000.00
2,750.00
2,250.00
3,000.00
7,000.00
3,500.00
21,000.00
.00

799,350.00

363,000.00

33,000.00
19,000.00
.00

.00
1,480.00
8,000.00
29,500.00
36,000.00
78,000.00
29,250.00
665.00
.00

.00

.00
7,000.00
8,000.00
750.00
6,800.00
750.00
850.00
4,000.00
1,250.00
3,000.00
2,000.00
1,500.00
12,500.00
3,000.00
10,000.00
3,750.00
2,750.00
10,000.00
.00
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2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual

Total FIRE DEPT EXPENSES: 505,811.06 663,150.00 420,290.04
LIBRARY EXPENSES
10-45-5001 Salaries and Wages 83,418.58 95,000.00 66,186.70
10-45-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 3,225.98- .00 .00
10-45-5006 Longevity Bonus 598.00 650.00 568.00
10-45-5007 Library Benefit Stipend 7,419.06 7,225.00 5,495.60
10-45-5010 FICA and Medicare 6,987.71 8,000.00 552217
10-45-5011 Retirement 5,711.94 8,000.00 5,333.40
10-45-5012 Health Insurance 565.38 750.00 428.20
10-45-5013 Worker's Compensation 329.63 400.00 271.34
10-45-5014 Unemployment 16.42 250.00 39.72
10-45-6110 Contract Services 1,589.12 1,750.00 1,451.16
10-45-6125 County Membership Dues .00 .00 .00
10-45-6185 Miscellaneous .00 250.00 47.70
10-45-6190 Office Supplies 266.00 300.00 303.03
10-45-6195 Operating Supplies - Library 4,911.44 4,750.00 3,245.74
10-45-6205 Print and Non-Print Materials 2,729.94 2,750.00 1,193.15
10-45-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment .00 200.00 200.00
10-45-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 1,295.90 1,500.00 1,076.93
10-45-6265 Telephone 1,024.97 1,250.00 542.21
10-45-6266 E-Rate Exp 424.95 600.00 483.00

Total LIBRARY EXPENSES: 114,063.06 133,625.00 92,388.05
PLANNING & ZONING EXP
10-46-5001 Salaries and Wages 62,151.86 70,000.00 47,469.64
10-46-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 2,618.45- .00 .00
10-46-5006 Longevity Bonus 368.00 400.00 238.00
10-46-5007 Health Benefit Stipend .00 .00 .00
10-46-5010 FICA and Medicare 4,724.27 5,500.00 3,609.25
10-46-5011 Retirement 5,298.33 7,000.00 4,106.85
10-46-5012 Health Insurance 12,538.53 10,000.00 9,389.60
10-46-5013 Worker's Compensation 471.16 600.00 371.06
10-46-5014 Unemployment 10.54 125.00 25.53
10-46-6105 Advertising, Printing, & Publi .00 100.00 .00
10-46-6110 Contract Services .00 .00 100.00
10-46-6115 Conventions and Seminars .00 250.00 .00
10-46-6116 Training and Education .00 1,250.00 .00
10-46-6170 Legal Exp - P&Z 6,322.50 12,500.00 1,485.00
10-46-6175 Map Upgrades / Copies 1,771.97 1,000.00 .00
10-46-6185 Miscellaneous 1,693.01 20,000.00 347.70
10-46-6192 Software Maintenance & Support 2,206.96 2,000.00 4,894.60
10-46-6195 Operating Supplies .00 100.00 .00
10-46-6250 Small Tools and Equipment .00 100.00 100.00
10-46-6265 Telephone 759.39 600.00 791.62
10-46-6275 Travel .00 250.00 .00
10-46-6310 Historic Preservation Exp 199.43 3,750.00 1,000.00

Total PLANNING & ZONING EXP: 95,797.50 135,525.00 73,928.85

PARKS EXPENSES

2025-26

Proposed Budget

675,795.00

93,500.00
.00
725.00
7,389.00
7,750.00
7,750.00
650.00
380.00
250.00
1,750.00
1,800.00
250.00
400.00
4,750.00
2,750.00
200.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
700.00

132,994.00

70,000.00
.00
425.00
.00
5,500.00
6,750.00
10,000.00
600.00
125.00
100.00
.00

.00
1,000.00
12,000.00
.00
20,000.00
2,500.00
.00

.00
600.00
250.00
4,000.00

133,850.00
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Page: 1
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2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
10-47-5001 Salaries and Wages 7,472.97 8,600.00 5,704.34
10-47-5005 Accrued Wages 281.94- .00 .00
10-47-5006 Longevity Bonus 31.73 40.00 25.28
10-47-5010 FICA and Medicare 543.77 700.00 425.32
10-47-5011 Retirement 736.45 1,100.00 592.24
10-47-5012 Health Insurance 2,562.75 2,600.00 1,793.17
10-47-5013 Waorker's Compensation 414.88 420.00 296.30
10-47-5014 Unemployment .87 10.00 2.26
10-47-6145 Fuel 432.64 900.00 390.51
10-47-6170 Legal .00 250.00 .00
10-47-6185 Miscellaneous 368.82 300.00 14.11
10-47-6192 Software Service & Support .00 100.00 .00
10-47-6195 Operating Supplies - Parks 320.08 500.00 114.07
10-47-6215 Rep and Maint - Building .00 100.00 .00
10-47-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 2,004.23 2,000.00 2111.41
10-47-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 649.68 800.00 684.59
10-47-6230 Rep and Maint - Infrastructure 884.13 1,000.00 .00
10-47-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 442.73 1,000.00 171.82
10-47-6280 Uniform Exp Parks 380.44 450.00 331.66
10-47-6285 Utilities 2,977.55 2,750.00 2,476.16
10-47-8040 Lease Payments 108.18 250.00 .00
Total PARKS EXPENSES: 20,049.96 23,870.00 15,133.24
PROPERTIES EXPENSES
10-48-5001 Salaries and Wages 46,260.19 55,000.00 35,312.82
10-48-5005 Accrued Wages 1,745.86- .00 .00
10-48-5006 Longevity Bonus 196.43 240.00 156.50
10-48-5010 FICA and Medicare 3,365.45 4,100.00 2,633.13
10-48-5011 Retirement 4,558.87 6,400.00 3,666.47
10-48-5012 Health Insurance 15,869.13 16,500.00 11,100.67
10-48-5013 Worker's Compensation 2,491.26 2,500.00 1,766.75
10-48-5014 Unemployment 5.44 60.00 13.81
10-48-6110 Contract Services 6,019.96 10,000.00 8,617.83
10-48-6140 Engineering Fees 4,406.50 7,500.00 8,191.50
10-48-6145 Fuel 1,727.90 1,500.00 1,706.90
10-48-6170 Legal Services .00 .00 .00
10-48-6185 Miscellaneous 1,482.44 1,750.00 552.88
10-48-6192 Software Service & Support .00 .00 43.92
10-48-6195 Operating Supplies - Propertie 730.08 2,000.00 848.24
Budget notes:
See Quote
10-48-6215 R&M Building - Properties 43,413.18 47,000.00 17,137.95
Budget notes:
~2026 Rep and Maint - Buildings (routine}-5 yr window plan 15,000.00
Rep and Maint - Buildings (special)-File Room or Chimney 25,000.00
Town Hall Fumace - Moyer Quote 10,000
10-48-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 2,020.64 2,000.00 2,897.02
10-48-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 1,061.22 1,000.00 684.59
10-48-6230 Rep and Maint - Infrastructure 538.82 20,000.00 132.76
10-48-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 1,814.73 1,500.00 1,185.71
10-48-6280 Uniform Exp Properties 380.41 375.00 331.67
10-48-6285 Utilities 46,843.16 45,500.00 40,327.26

2025-26

Proposed Budget

7,750.00
.00
40.00
600.00
1,000.00
2,300.00
400.00
10.00
800.00
250.00
250.00
200.00
500.00
200.00
2,500.00
800.00
750.00
750.00
450.00
2,900.00
.00

22,450.00

50,000.00
.00
230.00
3,750.00
5,800.00
14,000.00
2,300.00
50.00
10,500.00
7,500.00
1,500.00
.00
1,250.00
75.00
2,000.00

50,000.00

2,750.00
1,100.00
18,000.00
1,500.00
375.00
47,500.00
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2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
10-48-8040 Lease Payments 108.18 275.00 00
Total PROPERTIES EXPENSES: 181,548.13 225,200.00 137,308.38
GENERAL FUND Revenue Total: 2,624,609.87 3,048,995.00 2,063,295.67
GENERAL FUND Expenditure Total: 2,565,669.82 3,048,050.00 2,111,211.39
Total GENERAL FUND: 58,940.05 945.00 47,915.72-

2025-26
Proposed Budget

275.00
221,455.00
3,016,445.00
3,016,444.00

1.00
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2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Prior year Current year Current year Proposed Budget
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
UTILITY FUND
WATER REVENUE
20-50-4010 Fund Balance Reserves .00 200,150.00 150,112.53 94,000.00
20-50-4050 Connection Fees .00 .00 .00 .00
20-50-4085 Water Usage Fees 171,262.50 194,000.00 140,908.68 201,000.00
20-50-4100 Water Connection Fees .00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00
20-50-4105 Capital Grants .00 .00 .00 .00
20-50-4200 Contributions .00 .00 .00 .00
20-50-4500 Miscellaneous 845.74 1,750.00 1,612.49 1,750.00
20-50-4900 Transfers In 76,205.96 145,000.00 108,749.97 145,000.00
Budget notes:
~2026 From Parking $45,000
From General $100,000
Total : 248,314.20 545,900.00 401,383.67 446,750.00
WATER REVENUE
20-50-5001 Salaries and Wages 81,597.34 94,000.00 62,285.91 84,000.00
20-50-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 2,941.64- .00 .00 .00
20-50-5006 Longevity Bonus 346.47 430.00 276.04 375.00
20-50-5010 FICA and Medicare 5,936.16 7,300.00 4,644.60 6,300.00
20-50-5011 Retirement 8,041.23 12,000.00 6,467.14 10,000.00
20-50-5012 Health Insurance 27,989.73 30,000.00 19,579.26 24,000.00
20-50-5013 Worker's Compensation 4,958.98 5,500.00 3,750.53 4,600.00
20-50-5014 Unemployment 9.61 100.00 24.36 100.00
20-50-6105 Advertising, Printing, & Publi .00 .00 .00 .00
20-50-6110 Contract Services 12,300.00 17,000.00 9,615.00 16,000.00
20-50-6116 Training and Education .00 500.00 120.00 500.00
20-50-6120 Depreciation Expenses 75,876.00 .00 .00 .00
20-50-6135 Permit Fee Exp - Water 420.59 1,250.00 429.44 1,250.00
20-50-6140 Engineering Fees .00 4,000.00 6,590.00 7.000.00
20-50-6145 Fuel 3,529.40 4,000.00 1,663.69 3,250.00
20-50-6155 Insurance 16,561.14 12,250.00 7,262.10 14,000.00
20-50-6170 Legal Exp - Water 727.50 24,000.00 .00 10,000.00
20-50-6185 Miscellaneous 124.88 800.00 1,557.95 1,750.00
20-50-6192 Software Support Exp - Water 4,454.71 5,750.00 6,643.99 7,500.00
20-50-6195 Operating Supplies - Water 11,269.68 5,000.00 2,310.56 5,000.00
20-50-6215 R&M Building - Water .00 250.00 .00 500.00
20-50-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 2,495.16 3,000.00 2,353.24 3,000.00
20-50-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 1,366.82 2,000.00 684.59 2,000.00
20-50-6230 Rep and Maint - Infrastructure 47,189.01 240,000.00 17,243.13 180,000.00
Budget notes:
~2026 Deception Water Line 130,000.00
Walnut Springs Tank  50,000.00
20-50-6232 Springs Security Exp 1,144.25 6,000.00 838.51 6,000.00
20-50-6240 Service Tests/System Testing 453.00 750.00 393.00 750.00
20-50-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 516.15 2,000.00 252.55 2,000.00
20-50-6271 DWR Fee .00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00
20-50-6280 Uniform Exp Water 380.41 350.00 331.64 450.00
20-50-6285 Utilities Exp - Water 452.27 500.00 373.63 550.00
20-50-6290 Administrative Charge 57,012.00 59,016.00 44,262.00 60,550.00
20-50-8040 Lease Payments 574 800.00 .00 .00
20-50-8041 Vehicle Purchase-Water .00 .00 .00 .00

74




Item D.

Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 1(

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
Total WATER REVENUE: 362,216.59 539,546.00 199,952.86
SEWER REVENUE
20-51-4050 Connection Fees .00 5,500.00 .00
20-51-4085 Sewer Usage Fees 166,828.44 199,000.00 146,720.45
20-51-4300 Interest and Investment Eamin .00 .00 .00
20-51-4900 Transfers In 115,536.00 90,000.00 67,500.00
Budget notes:
~2026 From Parking $40,000.00
From General $40,000.00
Total : 282,364.44 294,500.00 214,220.45
SEWER REVENUE
20-51-5001 Salaries and Wages 44,247.60 51,000.00 33,777.45
20-51-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 1,595.12- .00 .00
20-51-5006 Longevity Bonus 187.87 240.00 149.68
20-51-5010 FICA and Medicare 3,218.89 3,900.00 2,518.73
20-51-5011 Retirement 4,360.55 6,100.00 3,507.18
20-51-5012 Health Insurance 15,178.40 15,500.00 10,618.22
20-51-5013 Worker's Compensation 2,618.46 2,750.00 1,966.04
20-51-5014 Unemployment 5.20 55.00 13.20
20-51-6110 Contract Services 39,900.00 47,500.00 30,055.00
20-51-6120 Depreciation Expense 20,696.77 .00 .00
20-51-6135 Pemit Fee Exp - Sewer 2,912.94 2,250.00 1,498.94
20-51-6140 Engineering Fees .00 14,750.00 8,186.50
20-51-6145 Fuel 1,707.86 3,000.00 865.57
20-51-6155 insurance 16,561.14 12,750.00 7.262.10
20-51-6170 Legal Exp - Sewer 1,233.00 1,000.00 .00
20-51-6185 Miscellaneous 498.13 750.00 1,653.44
20-51-6186 Bank Fees - Sewer Accts .00 .00 .00
20-51-6192 Software Support Exp - Sewer 4,454.71 6,000.00 6,956.59
20-51-6195 Operating Supplies - Sewer 9,976.63 12,000.00 7,882.59
20-51-6215 R&M Building - Sewer .00 .00 190.64
20-51-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 2,717.22 3,250.00 2,254.13
20-51-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 492.11 575.00 684.59
20-51-6230 Rep and Maint - Infrastructure 35,330.48 35,000.00 3,209.03
Budget notes:
~2026 Rep and Maint - Infrastructure 20,000.00
Rep and Maint - Intrastructure (jetter) 7,000.00
20-51-6240 Service Tests/System Testing 11,714.08 11,000.00 7,608.72
20-51-6250 Small Tools & Equipment (under 250.20 1,500.00 1,112.72
20-51-6280 Uniform Exp Sewer 380.42 450.00 331.66
20-51-6285 Utilities 2,425.64 2,750.00 1,842.06
20-51-6290 Administrative Charge 57,012.00 59,016.00 44,262.00
20-51-8020 Sewer Interest Expense 36,000.00 .00 .00
20-51-8040 Lease Payments 5.76 900.00 .00
Total SEWER REVENUE: 312,490.94 293,986.00 178,406.78
SANITATION REVENUE
20-52-4085 Sanitation Usage Fees 175,766.09 193,000.00 132,824.84

2025-26
Proposed Budget

452,425.00

5,500.00
205,000.00
.00
80,000.00

290,500.00

47,000.00
.00
240.00
3,750.00
5,500.00
14,000.00
2,850.00
50.00
48,750.00
.00
2,950.00
14,000.00
2,000.00
14,000.00
1,500.00
2,000.00
.00
7,500.00
12,500.00
.00
3,000.00
600.00
32,000.00

10,500.00
1,500.00
450.00
2,750.00
60,550.00
.00

.00

289,940.00

190,000.00
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Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
20-52-4500 Miscellaneous .00 2,750.00 .00 2,000.00
20-52-4900 Transfers In 63,693.00 65,000.00 48,750.03 70,000.00

Total SANITATION REVENUE: 239,449.09 260,750.00 181,574.87 262,000.00
SANITATION REVENUE
20-52-5001 Salaries and Wages 70,399.30 82,000.00 53,739.69 71,500.00
20-52-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 2,537.70- .00 .00 .00
20-52-5006 Longevity Bonus 298.90 380.00 238.14 380.00
20-52-5010 FICA and Medicare 5,121.56 6,500.00 4,007.31 5,750.00
20-52-5011 Retirement 6,937.65 10,000.00 5,579.81 9,000.00
20-52-5012 Health Insurance 24,149.71 25,000.00 16,893.03 22,500.00
20-52-5013 Worker's Compensation 5,950.40 6,600.00 5,614.81 6,500.00
20-52-5014 Unemployment 8.32 90.00 21.02 75.00
20-52-6111 Recycling Contract Exp 1,800.00 1,750.00 1,900.00 1,800.00
20-52-61186 Training & Education .00 .00 95.00 200.00
20-52-6120 Depreciation Expense 275.99 .00 .00 .00
20-52-6142 Equipment Rentals .00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00
20-52-6145 Fuel 6,704.53 7,750.00 3,375.60 6,000.00
20-52-6155 Insurance 16,561.14 12,750.00 7,262.10 14,500.00
20-52-6165 Landfill Tipping Fees 19,771.60 19,000.00 16,764.63 21,000.00
20-52-6185 Miscellaneous 292.81 8,000.00 1,820.59 8,000.00
20-52-6192 Software Support Exp - Trash 3,713.23 4,500.00 5,306.22 5,500.00
20-52-6195 Operating Supplies - Trash 334.28 450.00 305.71 500.00
20-52-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 9,308.54 7,750.00 8,191.83 9,000.00
20-52-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 511.85 600.00 684.59 600.00
20-52-6230 R&M Trash - Infrastructure 37.52 250.00 35.13 250.00
20-52-6250 Small Tools and Equipment .00 1,500.00 305.41 1,500.00
20-52-6280 Uniform Exp Trash 380.44 350.00 331.69 350.00
20-52-6290 Administrative Charge 57,012.00 59,016.00 44,262.00 60,550.00
20-52-9500 Transfers Out 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

Budget notes:

New Garbage Truck

Total : 237,032.07 265,236.00 186,734.31 256,455.00

UTILITY FUND Revenue Total: 770,127.73 1,101,150.00 797,178.99 999,250.00

UTILITY FUND Expenditure Total: 911,739.60 1,098,768.00 565,093.95 998,820.00

Total UTILITY FUND: 141,611.87- 2,382.00 232,085.04 430.00
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Item D.

Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 1
Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
HURF FUND
HURF REVENUE
30-30-4010 HURF Fund Balance Reserve .00 .00 .00
30-30-4020 HURF Revenue 48,502.51 48,000.00 35,633.22
30-30-4300 Interest and Investment Eamin 3,710.25 2,750.00 2,926.51
30-30-4900 Transfers In 200,145.00 190,000.00 142,499.97
Budget notes:
~2026 From Parking $110,000.00
Total : 252,357.76 240,750.00 181,059.70
HURF REVENUE
30-30-5001 Salaries and Wages 56,593.23 44,000.00 48,463.25
30-30-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages 2,066.19- .00 .00
30-30-5006 Longevity Bonus 423.60 200.00 401.36
30-30-5010 FICA and Medicare 4,209.21 3,500.00 3,673.66
30-30-5011 Retirement 3,681.44 5,300.00 2,960.77
30-30-5012 Health Insurance 12,813.31 13,000.00 8,963.45
30-30-5013 Worker's Compensation 2,483.78 2,100.00 1,893.68
30-30-5014 Unemployment 9.56 50.00 30.44
30-30-6140 Engineering Fees 2,415.00 2,500.00 .00
30-30-6142 Equipment Rentals .00 750.00 .00
30-30-6145 Fuel 1.716.47 1,500.00 1,395.42
30-30-6155 Insurance 11,040.76 8,500.00 4,841.40
30-30-6160 COVID Expenses - Portajohns .00 .00 .00
30-30-6185 Miscellaneous 552.41 650.00 756.56
30-30-6192 Software Service & Support 1,349.01 1,575.00 1,228.28
30-30-6195 Operating Supplies - HURF 72.40 500.00 114.04
30-30-6210 Public Restroom Supplies 2,855.38 1,250.00 5,954.98
30-30-6215 Repair & Maintenance - Buildin .00 500.00 .00
30-30-6220 Rep and Maint - Vehicles 2,034.79 1,750.00 2,134.43
30-30-6225 Rep and Maint - Equipment 1,071.24 1,000.00 684.60
30-30-6230 Rep and Maint - Infrastructure 67,394.84 124,000.00 81,546.22
Budget notes:
~2026 First Section of County Rd
Repair & Maintenance - Street Patching
30-30-6250 Small Tools and Equipment 3,088.99 500.00 187.90
Budget notes:
Snow Plow
30-30-6255 Street Lights 13,983.05 13,500.00 11,054.72
30-30-6260 Street Supplies 5,217.58 4,750.00 1,848.62
30-30-6280 Uniform Exp - HURF 380.44 400.00 331.68
30-30-6290 Administrative Charge 8,412.00 8,755.00 6,566.22
30-30-7000 Capital outlay - Public restro .00 .00 .00
30-30-8040 Lease Payments 108.23 200.00 .00
Total HURF REVENUE: 199,840.53 240,730.00 185,031.68
HURF FUND Revenue Total: 252,357.76 240,750.00 181,059.70
HURF FUND Expenditure Total: 199,840.53 240,730.00 185,031.68
Total HURF FUND: 52,517.23 20.00 3,971.98-

2025-26
Proposed Budget

7,350.00
48,750.00
3,000.00
110,000.00

169,100.00

38,000.00
.00
200.00
3,000.00
4,750.00
11,500.00
1,900.00
40.00
2,500.00
1,000.00
1,500.00
10,500.00
.00
1,000.00
1,575.00
500.00
4,000.00
500.00
1,900.00
1.000.00
45,000.00

10,000.00

14,250.00
4,750.00
550.00
9,185.00
.00

.00

169,100.00

168,100.00

169,100.00

.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 1

Item D.

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

Account Number

Account Title

2023-24 2024-25
Prior year Current year
Actual Budget

2024-25 2025-26
Current year Proposed Budget
Actual
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Item D.

Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 1

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Prior year Current year Current year Proposed Budget
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
PARKING FUND
PARKING FUND REVENUE
35-35-4042 Parking Kiosk Revenue 377,291.31 355,000.00 301,837.77 386,000.00
35-35-4043 Allowance for Additional Kiosk .00 .00 .00 .00
Total : 377,291.31 355,000.00 301,837.77 386,000.00
PARKING FUND REVENUE
35-35-5001 Salaries and Wages 28,057.11 41,000.00 26,271.99 40,000.00
35-35-5005 Accrued Salaries & Wages .00 .00 .00 .00
35-35-5006 Longevity Bonus 90.00 180.00 100.00 200.00
35-35-5010 FICA Match 2,153.21 3,100.00 2,017.50 2,800.00
35-35-5013 Worker's Compensation 983.02 1,100.00 841.79 950.00
35-35-5014 Unemployment 7.49 175.00 26.71 125.00
35-35-6145 Fuel 508.72 1,000.00 466.21 1,000.00
35-35-6185 Miscellaneous .00 1,000.00 742.45 1,000.00
35-35-6186 Bank Charges .00 .00 180.30 100.00
35-35-6188 Credit Card Processing Fees 32,189.58 27,500.00 27,520.44 29,500.00
35-35-6192 Software Service and Support 24,312.26 27,500.00 13,511.26 22,000.00
35-35-6195 Operating Supplies 2,258.79 2,500.00 2,060.80 3,000.00
35-35-6265 Telephone 6,748.41 5,500.00 4,872.96 6,750.00
35-35-6290 Administrative Charge 5,592.00 5,750.00 4,312.53 6,260.00
35-35-7000 Capital Outlay .00 .00 .00 20,000.00
35-35-8041 Allowance for additional capit .00 4,000.00 .00 12,000.00
35-35-9500 Transfers Out 247,996.00 232,000.00 173,999.97 240,000.00
Budget notes:
~2026 Transfer to General Budget (public safety) 45,000.00
Transfer to HURF Budget 110,000.00
Transfer to Water Budget 45,000.00
Transfer to Sewer Budget 40,000.00
Total PARKING FUND REVENUE: 350,896.59 352,305.00 256,924.91 385,685.00
PARKING FUND Revenue Total: 377,291.31 355,000.00 301,837.77 386,000.00
PARKING FUND Expenditure Total: 350,896.59 352,305.00 256,924.91 385,685.00
Total PARKING FUND: 26,394.72 2,695.00 44,912.86 315.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 1

Item D.

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Prior year Current year Current year Proposed Budget

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
FIRE DEPT PENSION & RETIREMENT
FIRE DEPT P&R REVENUE
40-60-4250 Town confribution 15,000.00 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00
40-60-4255 State Pension Contribution 4,236.09 2,750.00 .00 2,750.00
40-60-4256 Retirement Rev FD P&R .00 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00
40-60-4300 Interest and Investment Eamin 5,529.18 .00 .00 .00
40-60-4306 Change in Fair Val of Investme 24,741.27 .00 .00 .00

Total : 49,506.54 27,750.00 .00 27,750.00
FIRE DEPT P&R REVENUE
40-60-6110 Contract Services 4,983.17 .00 .00 .00
40-60-6235 Retirement Exp FD P&R 31,635.93 27,750.00 2,000.00 27,750.00

Total FIRE DEPT P&R REVENUE: 36,619.10 27,750.00 2,000.00 27,750.00

FIRE DEPT PENSION & RETIREMENT Revenue Total:

49,506.54 27,750.00 .00 27.750.00
FIRE DEPT PENSION & RETIREMENT Expenditure Total:
36,619.10 27,750.00 2,000.00 27.750.00
Total FIRE DEPT PENSION & RETIREMENT: 12,887.44 .00 2,000.00- .00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Item D.
Page: 16

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE
OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE
50-40-4066 RICO Rev - Opr Grants .00 .00 27,025.08
50-40-4067 Police Dept Rev - Opr Grants 22,452.77 20,000.00 .00
50-40-4068 Fire Dept Rev - Opr Grants 11,899.60 43,000.00 15,402.85
50-40-4100 Operating Grants Revenue .00 .00 .00
50-40-4101 Water Tower Siting Grant .00 32,000.00 .00
50-40-4102 Yavapai County Storm Drainage/ 26,187.36 30,000.00 .00
50-40-4103 PZ: SHPO Grant Revenue .00 .00 .00
50-40-4104 FMI: Water Planning .00 .00 .00
50-40-4105 Community & Foundation Grant R .00 20,000.00 .00
50-40-4150 Police: Prop 207 funding .00 5,000.00 .00
50-40-4185 MISCELLANEOUS grants 57,555.36 350,000.00 13,362.06
50-40-4200 Misc. Judicial Grants .00 25,000.00 .00
Total : 118,095.09 525,000.00 55,789.99
OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE
50-40-6100 Misc. Judicial Grant Exp. .00 25,000.00 .00
50-40-6101 Water Tower Siting Grant .00 32,000.00 .00
50-40-6102 Yavapai County Storm Drainage/ 24,785.86 30,000.00 .00
50-40-6103 PZ: SHPO Grant Expenses .00 .00 .00
50-40-6104 FMI Water Planning Expenses .00 .00 .00
50-40-6105 Community Investment .00 20,000.00 .00
50-40-6110 Contract Services Exp - Opr Gr .00 .00 .00
50-40-6150 Police: Prop 207 Funding .00 5,000.00 .00
50-40-6170 Legal Exp - Opr Grants .00 .00 .00
50-40-6185 Use of MISCELLANEQUS grants 57,555.36 350,000.00 .00
50-40-6236 RICO Exp - Opr Grants .00 .00 26,964.48
50-40-6237 Police Dept Exp - Opr Grants 22,452.77 20,000.00 .00
50-40-6238 Fire Dept Exp - Opr Grants 12,733.90 43,000.00 12,974.74
Total OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE: 117,527.89 525,000.00 39,939.22
OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE Revenue Total: 118,095.09 525,000.00 55,789.99
OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE Expenditure Total:
117,527.89 525,000.00 39,939.22
Total OPERATING GRANTS REVENUE: 567.20 .00 15,850.77

2025-26
Proposed Budget

20,000.00
20,000.00
27,500.00
.00
45,000.00
50,000.00
.00

.00
20,000.00
.00
500,000.00
.00

682,500.00

.00
45,000.00
50,000.00

.00

.00
20,000.00

.00

.00

.00

500,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
27,500.00

6682,500.00

682,500.00

662,500.00

.00
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Item D.

Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 1

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
CAPITAL GRANTS FUND
CAPITAL GRANTS REVENUE
60-70-4105 CDBG DeceptioWaterline Revenue .00 400,000.00 .00
60-70-4106 HURF Exchange Drainage Project .00 .00 .00
60-70-4107 Yavapai Apache Gaming Donation .00 16,000.00 8,657.86
60-70-4108 Freeport McMoRan - Social Inve .00 25,000.,00 .00
60-70-4109 Brownfields grant:Hotel Jerome .00 .00 .00
60-70-4110 Grant for Healthcare Clinic .00 .00 .00
60-70-4111 Legislative Funding-Center Ave .00 500,000.00 .00
60-70-4112 Congressional Funding Hydrants .00 .00 .00
60-70-4113 WIFA Grant-Mescal School .00 .00 .00
60-70-4114 WIFA Grant-Verde Decept Gulch .00 .00 .00
60-70-4185 Miscellaneous Capital Grants .00 500,000.00 .00
60-70-4195 American Rescue Fund AZ State .00 .00 .00
60-70-4200 Federal Grants .00 2,500,000.00 .00

Total : .00 3,941,000.00 8,657.86
CAPITAL GRANTS REVENUE
60-70-6105 CDBG DeceptiWaterline Expenses .00 400,000.00 7,515.53
60-70-6106 HURF Exchange Drainage Expense .00 .00 .00
60-70-6107 Yavapai Apache Grant Expenses .00 16,000.00 .00
60-70-6108 Freeport McMoRan - Social Inve .00 25,000.00 .00
60-70-6109 Brownfields grant:Hotel Jerome .00 .00 .00
60-70-6110 Grant for Healthcare Clinic .00 .00 .00
60-70-6111 Legistative Funding-CenterAve .00 500,000.00 .00
60-70-6112 Congressional Funding Hydrants .00 .00 .00
60-70-6113 WIFA Grant Exp-Mescal School .00 .00 .00
60-70-6114 WIFA Grant Exp-Verde Dec Gulch .00 .00 .00
60-70-6140 Engineering Exp - Cap Grants .00 .00 .00
60-70-6185 Misc Exp - Cap Grants 165.00 500,000.00 6,200.00
60-70-6195 American Rescue Fund AZ State .00 .00 .00
60-70-6200 Federal Grant Exp .00 2,500,000.00 .00
60-70-6215 R&M Building Exp - Cap Grants .00 .00 .00
60-70-6230 R&M Infrastructure Exp - Cap G .00 .00 .00
60-70-7020 Operating Equip, Cap Outlay - .00 .00 .00

Total CAPITAL GRANTS REVENUE: 165.00 3,941,000.00 13,715.53

CAPITAL GRANTS FUND Revenue Total: .00 3,941,000.00 8,657.86

CAPITAL GRANTS FUND Expenditure Total: 165.00 3,941,000.00 13,715.53

Total CAPITAL GRANTS FUND: 165.00- .00 5,057.67-

2025-26
Proposed Budget

400,000.00
.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
500,000.00
.00

.00

.00
1,450,000.00
1,550,000.00
500,000.00
.00
2,500,000.00

6,935,000.00

400,000.00
.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
500,000.00
.00

.00

.00
1,450,000.00
1,550,000.00
.00
500,000.00
.00
2,500,000.00
.00

.00

.00

6,935,000.00
6,935,000.00
6,935,000.00

.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12,12.2022
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Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 14
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Item D.

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES FND
GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES REV
70-25-4090 Wildlands Rev - Contingency .00 75,000.00 .00
70-25-4295 Excess Sales Tax- Misc 55,933.25 2,350,000.00 10,000.00
70-25-4900 Transfer In 10,000.00 .00 .00

Total : 65,933.25 2,425,000.00 10,000.00
GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES REV
70-25-6276 Wildlands Exp - Contingency 4,599.21 75,000,00 61,852.53
70-25-6295 Expense - GF Contingencies 6,615.10 2,350,000.00 331.21
70-25-7025 Vehicles, Cap Exp, GF Contgy .00 .00 .00
70-25-9500 Transfer Out .00 .00 .00

Total GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES REV: 11,214.31 2,425,000.00 62,183.74

GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES FND Revenue Total:

65,933.25 2,425,000.00 10,000.00
GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES FND Expenditure Total:
11,214.31 2,425,000.00 62,183.74
Total GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCIES FND: 54,718.94 .00 52,183.74-

2025-26
Proposed Budget

75,000.00
2,350,000.00
.00

2,425,000.00

75,000.00
2,350,000.00
.00

.00

2,425,000.00

2,425,000.00

2,425,000.00

.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 {04/30/2025)

Page: 19 ltem D.

Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year
Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES FUND
UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES REV
80-55-4295 Revenue - UF Contingencies .00 500,000.00 .00
80-55-4900 Transfers In .00 .00 .00
Total : .00 500,000.00 .00
UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES REV
80-55-6295 Expense - UF Contingencies .00 500,000.00 .00
Total UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES REV: .00 500,000.00 .00
UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES FUND Revenue Total:
.00 500,000.00 .00
UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES FUND Expenditure Total:
.00 500,000.00 .00
Total UTILITIES CONTINGENCIES FUND: .00 .00 .00

2025-26
Proposed Budget

.00
.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
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Town of Jerome
Live 12.12.2022

Budget Worksheet - Proposed Budget
Period 04/25 (04/30/2025)

Page: 2
Apr 15, 2025 12:13PM

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25
Prior year Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Actual
CAPITAL FUND
CAPITAL FUND REVENUES
90-57-4300 Bank Interest - Capital Fund 274.95 225.00 611.10
90-57-4303 Interest - WWTP 563.78 575.00 69.62
90-57-4510 Bridge Loan Wastewater Treatme .00 .00 .00
90-57-4515 Interdim WWTP Loan .00 2,000,000.00 .00
90-57-4520 CARRYOVER Capital Fund .00 .00 .00
90-57-4900 Transfers In - Capital Fund .00 .00 .00

Total : 838.73 2,000,800.00 680.72
CAPITAL FUND REVENUES
90-57-7024 New shuttle van (trade) .00 .00 .00
90-57-7025 Downpayment on new garbage trk .00 .00 .00
90-57-7026 Housing Purchase Expense .00 .00 543,387.91
90-57-7027 Wastewater Treatment Design Ex 632,507.64 .00 154,603.72
90-57-7028 Third Water Tank Design .00 .00 .00
90-57-7030 Interim WWTP Loan Exp 7,317.50 2,000,000.00 .00

Total CAPITAL FUND REVENUES: 639,825.14 2,000,000.00 697,991.63

CAPITAL FUND Revenue Total: 838.73 2,000,800.00 680.72

CAPITAL FUND Expenditure Total: 639,825.14 2,000,000.00 697,991.63

Total CAPITAL FUND: 638,986.41- 800.00 697,310.91-

Grand Totals: 574,737.70- 6,842.00 515,591.35-

2025-26
Proposed Budget

-_

.00
.00
.00
1,000,000.00
.00
.00

1,000,000.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

.00

746.00

Report Criteria:

Includes all accounts

Includes grand totals

Includes budget notes with general notes and with year ending periods: Future year, 06/26
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FY 2024 through FY 20230

Item D.

Town Hall Historic Maintenance Upgrade and Repairs

Enhance the efficiency, safety and welfare of the Jerome Civic Center / Town Hall fo include chimney repairs,

Departiment: - Properties

Priority: High

Category:

Location: 600 Clark Street

Project Ty C €
Descrip’rion: window replacements, exterior improvements, doors / locks and flooring.

EA gmin o

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Budget - Grants $0 $33,000 $67,000 $150,000 $250,000 $500,000
Total $0 $33,000 $67,000 $150,000 $250,000 $0 | $500,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
staff $0 $33,000 $67,000 $150,000 $250,000 $500,000

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Total

$0

$33,000

$67,000

$150,000

$250,000

$0

$500,

Item D.

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Hotel Jerome Renovations - Affordable Housing

A

Department: - Properties
Priority: High
Category:
it gl L
1R
Location: Hotel Jerome g
'-.'I
i
Project To repurpose a historic building with potential for numerous separate living units in order to provide enhanced
Description: affordable housing options.

g

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Grants - Sale of Property $0 $4,000,000 | $4,000,000
Total $0 $0 S0 S0 $0 | $4,000,000 | 54,000,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Staff $0 $4,000,000 | $4,000,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030

4] ¢ g 89




It D.
Total S0 $0 $0 50 s0 | $4,000,000 s4,004 em

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program
FY 2026 - 2030 ) 90




FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Verde Central Syphon Line

Verde Central Syphon Line is a major water line in which greater than 80% of the Town's water supply passes

Department: - Water

Priority: High

Category:

Location:

Project . 3 . o
Description: through. It sits on a hot bed of tailings thereby eroding the iron pipe.

Funding Sources Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
WIFA $0 $700,000 $700,000
Total S0 SO $700,000 SO S0 S0 $700,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Engineer's Estimate $0 $700,000 $700,000
Total S0 S0 $700,000 S0 S0 S0 $700,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Mescal Canyon Sypon

Description:

Department: - Water
Priority: High
Category:

Location:

Project

Mescal Syphon Line is over 100 years old and delivers the majority of the Town's water supply to the users. Due
to environmental risks and extreme difficulty in accessing, plus the inclination to leaks and bursts, it needs

replacement
Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
WIFA WSD Grant $0 $850,000 $850,000
Total S0 $0 $850,000 S0 $0 $0 | $850,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Engineer's Estimate $0 $850,000 $850,000
Total S0 $0 $850,000 $0 $0 $0 | $850,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

School Street Regulator

Description:

replaced with a PRV (Pressure Reading Valve) to eliminate vulnerabilities and enhance monitoring for real time

adjustments and alerts.

Department: - Water s =
% 2
I‘;'E'-“: :& .'“-:.?;_-\‘
Priority: High
: ] .
Category: h, .
EA -
t .I,.. =
Location: School Street -
\ r'y
i e
?1._ o A | -
Project School Street Regulator manages water pressure to most of the Town's residents and businesses. It needs to be

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
WIFA WSD Grant $0 $550,000 $550,000
Total S0 $0 $550,000 $0 S0 $0 | $550,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Engineer's Estimate $0 $550,000 $550,000
Total S0 $0 $550,000 $0 S0 $0 | $550,000

Town of Jerome ~ Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Description:

WWTP Upgrade

Department: - Sewer

Priority: High 7 &
:-.... :" -)’:.}s‘gv k

Category: ;

Location:

Project Due to exceedances in the Ammonia impact Ratio and Total Recoverable Copper the Town has violated its

Arizona Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit and is under a consent order fo upgrade the WWTP fo
meet standards.

Funding Sources Prior FY20246 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
USDA Grant and Loan $0 $6,500,000 $6,500,000
USDA Grant and Loan $0 $1,500,000 $0 $0 $1,500,000
Total S0 $1,500,000 $6,500,000 SO S0 SO0 | $8,000,000
Expenditures Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
PACE Engineering $0 $0 $6,500,000 $0 $6,500,000
Total S0 h{o] $6,500,000 S0 SO S0 | $6,500,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2024 through FY 20230

Item D.

East Road Improvements

Description:

[
A%
. ?I":_" e
Department: ST - Streets/Roads/Walks/Trails f o
Priority: Normal
Category: 3
|
z f
Location:
4 /‘
. 'f
Project Roadway improvements to East, including underground utilities and drainage.

Funding Sources Prior FY202é FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
$0 $0
Total S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO SO
Expenditures Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
$0 $0

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Staff

$0

$0

$275,000

$0

$2,500,000

$2,77 Item D.

Total

S0

$0

$275,000

$0

$0

$2,500,000

$2,775,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

North Road Improvements

Department: ST - Streets/Roads/Walks/Trails

Priority: Normal

Category:

Location:

Project Roadway improvements to North, including underground utilities and drainage.
Description:

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
$0 $0
Total ) ) $0 $0 S0 $0 $0
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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$ Item D.

$0
Staff $0 $0 $0 $295,000 $2,205,000 | $2,500,000
Total S0 S0 SO $295,000 $0 $2,205,000 | $2,500,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Holly Road Improvements

i

Department: ST - Streets/Roads/Walks/Trails

Priority: Normal

Category:

Location:

Project Roadway improvements to Holley inciuding underground utilities and drainage.
Description:

Al X

e 7 4

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
$0 $0
Total SO SO S0 S0 SO SO $0
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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$0

Item D.

Total

$0

$0

S0

S0

S0

$0

$0

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2024 through FY 20230

Item D.

Water Tank Feasibility Study

Department: - Water

Priority: Normall

Category:

Location:

Project In order to enhance water storage capabilities and redundancy, and improve sustainability efforts, the Town
Description: must add a new water storage facility.

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
USDA Grant $0 $80,000 $80,000
Total S0 S0 $0 $80,000 $0 ) $80,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Staff and Engineer $0 $80,000 $80,000
Total S0 S0 S0 $80,000 $0 S0 $80,000

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Municipal Court Space Improvement Project and Files /Records

Management
Department: - Properties
N
= ]
AN

Priority: High
Category:
Location: 600 Clark Street

5 S e e i
Project The third floor of Town Hall / Jerome Civic Center needs to be re-configured in order to provide adequate and
Description: safe municipal court space, and safe, secure and accessible vital Town records and files.

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Granis and Budget $0 $0
Total S0 S0 SO SO S0 S0 S0
Expenditures Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
$0 $0
Total (0] S0 SO S0 SO S0 S0

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program
FY 2026 - 2030

Item D.
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Item D.

FY 2026 through FY 20230

Police Vehicle

Description:

Department: VE - Vehicles/Equipment

Priority: Normal

Category:

Location:

Projecf Purchase a new police vehicle through JW Auto Sales. This vendor is unique in that they are able to take

damaged, yet repairable vehicles and re-build them into a serviceable condition and sell them to us on a
salvaged title at a significantly reduced rate than a traditional dealer. Additionally unique to this vendor is that
the vehicles offered for sale were in service as police vehicles and come already partially equipped or
optioned with police interceptor packages

Funding Sources Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
GF Fund $0 $42,000 $42,000
Total SO $42,000 S0 S0 ] SO $42,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Quote $0 $42,000 $42,000
Total SO $42,000 SO S0 S0 ] $42,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Upgrade Parking Kiosks to T2

Department: PS-P - Public Safety - Police
Version 6.3.6
Priority: High
Category:
Location:
Project The existing kiosks have fallen out of the warranty and parts replacement period, plus there is new, better
Description: technology available. The proposed kiosks are more user friendly and have enhanced connectivity.

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
GF Fund / Parking Fund $0 $32,000 $32,000
Total $0 $32,000 S0 $0 S0 S0 $32,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Quote $0 $32,000 $32,000
Total SO $32,000 S0 $0 SO S0 $32,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

County Asphalt Overlay

Department:

ST - Streets/Roads/Walks/Trails

i
g S
e Ty
Priority: Normal ~x s
- ‘:.!:' -
._?.ﬂ M

Category:
Location: County Road
Project Improve and enhance the life cycle of County Road by miling and providing a 3-inch asphalt overlay on the
Description: first portion of County, continuing with the Town's annual asphait enhancement and improvements.

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
GF / HURF Budgets $0 $120,000 $120,000
Total $0 $0 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 | $120,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Quote $0 $120,000 $120,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Total

S0

S0

$120,000

$0

$0

$0

$12

Item D.

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Sanitation Truck

Department: VE - Vehicles/Equipment
Priority: High

Category:

Location:

Project Replace our current waste hauling truck that is in a constant state of disrepair and can no longer meet the
Description: Town's needs.

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
GF Reserve / Budget $0 $265,000 $265,000
Total S0 S0 $0 S0 $265,000 S0 | $265,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Quote $0 $265,000 $265,000
Total S0 S0 $0 S0 $265,000 SO [ $265,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Retaining Wall Repair

Department: ST - Streets/Roads/Walks/Trails

Priority: High

Category:

Location:

Project Enhance, reinforce, and make sustainable the public retaining walls throughout Town.
Description:

Funding Sources Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Grants and Budget $0 $500,000 $500,000
Total S0 SO SO $500,000 SO S0 $500,000
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Engineer Preliminary Est. $0 $500,000 $500,000
Total SO S0 SO $500,000 SO SO $500,000

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Juarez to Rich Street Metal Stairs

I

Department: PA - Parks/Greenbelts/Grounds

Priority: Low

Category:

Location:

Project The stairway is in need of replacement with durable and long-lasting metal stairway.
Description:

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
GF Budget $0 $0
Total S0 $0 $0 ) 50 S0 )
Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
$0 $0
Total $0 S0 S0 $0 S0 S0 S0

Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program
FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Stairway Improvements - Upper Park to Main / Haunted Hamburger

The concrete stairway has uneven surfaces, cracking and pulling away causing foundation issues. The

Department: PA - Parks/Greenbelts/Grounds
Priority: Normal
Category:

. Between Upper Park and Haunted
Location:

Hamburger

Project
Descripﬁon: stairway needs repair / reconstruction and the landing areas need improvements as well.

Funding Sources Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Total $0 $0 $0 S0

Expenditures Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total

Staff $0 $33,000 $0 $0 $33,000
Total S0 $33,000 SO ) S0 S0 $33,000

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program
FY 2026 - 2030
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FY 2026 through FY 20230

Item D.

Upper Park Retaining Wall Above PD

Department: PA - Parks/Greenbelts/Grounds

Priority: Normal

Category: -':-;5_’:'7_-?"
i o

Location: Upper Park Above PD

Project Stabilize and enhance the failing retaining wall located odjo(-:

Description: eliletiielt

Funding Sources Prior FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Total $0 $0 S0 $0

Expenditures Prior FY2024 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Total
Total $0 $0 $0 $0

Town of Jerome — Capital Improvement Program

FY 2026 - 2030
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Town of Jerome - Capital Improvement Program
FY 2026 - 2030
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